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DeKalb County, Georgia
1300 Commerce Drive, Decatur, Georgia 30030
(404) 371-2741 (404) 371-2750 FAX

March 31, 2004

Chief Executive Officer and Members
DeKalb County Board of Commissioners
DeKalb County, Georgia

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of DeKalb County, Georgia, (the County) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003 is
submitted herewith. This report is prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Act providing uniform standards for audits of municipalities and
counties within the State of Georgia, approved April 21, 1967 (Ga. Laws 1967, p. 883) as amended by an Act approved March 28, 1968 (Ga. Laws 1968,
p. 464). The County fully adopted GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - and Management’s Discussion and Analysis- for State and
Local Governments, GASB Statement No. 37, Basic Financial Statements-and Management’s Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local
Governments, an amendment of GASB Statements No. 21 and No. 34, and GASB Statement No. 38, Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures, in
fiscal year 2002.

This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the County. Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for
the completeness and reliability of all of the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations,
management of the County has established a comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to protect the government’s assets from
loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the County’s financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the County’s comprehensive framework
of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from material
misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial statement is complete and reliable in all material
respects.

The County’s financial statements have been audited by KPMG, LLP licensed certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to
provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the County for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003, are free of material misstatement.
The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent
auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that the County’s financial statements for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor’s report is presented as the first
component of the financial section of this report.
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The independent audit of the financial statements of the County was part of a broader, federally mandated “Single Audit” designed to meet the special
needs of federal grantor agencies. The standards governing Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to report not only on the fair
presentation of the financial statements, but also on the audited government’s internal controls and compliance with legal requirements, with special
emphasis on internal controls and legal requirements nvolving the administration of federal awards. These reports are available in the County’s
separately issued Single Audit Report.

GAAP require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be rezd in conjunction with it.
The County’s MD&A can be found immediately followirg the report of the independent auditors.

Profile of the Government

DeKalb County is an urban county providing a full range of services to 691,300 citizens. Included in these services are traditional county functions such
as road maintenance and court-related activities, as well as a number of municipal services such as police, fire, solid waste collection and disposal, and
water and sewer. There are nine incorporated municipalities within the County, including a portion of the City of Atlanta. Those municipalities
comprise approximately 13% of the total population of the County, and provide services to their citizens in varying degrees. Selected County
demographic information is provided in the statistical section of this report.

A 1981 Act of the General Assembly of Georgia provides for distinct executive and legislative branches of County government. The executive branch is
headed by the elective position of Chief Executive Officer (CEO). The legislative branch is made up of the Board of Commissioners, composed of seven
members, which elects from its membership a Presiding Officer and Deputy Presiding Officer. The CEO may preside at Board meetings and may vote in
the event of a tie vote, except the CEO does not preside nor vote on zoning matters. The CEO has veto power, which may be overridden by a two-thirds
majority vote of the Board of Commissioners. The Board of Commissioners has the power and authority to fix and establish, by appropriate resolution
or ordinance (entered on its minutes), policies, rules and regulations governing all matters reserved to its jurisdiction. The CEO has exclusive power to
supervise, direct and control the administration of the County government.

The financial statements, schedules, and statistical tables included in this report pertain to all functions and funds directly under the control of the DeKalb
County CEO and Board of Commissioners. Also included are trust and agency funds administered and controlled by various elected or appointed
officials, which are not reported upon by any other entity. The Board of Health and the Public Library are included as component units of the County.
These component units are partially funded by the County, and derive significant funding from Federal and State grants and user fees. The Board of
Health provides a broad range of physical health services, and the Public Library provides a wide range of information services. Both units ended the
year in good financial positions.

Certain other entities are not included within the scope of this report. These exclusions consist of the DeKalb County Board of Education, the Fulton-
DeKalb Hospital Authority, the DeKalb Board of Family and Children Services, the DeKalb Community Service Board, the DeKalb Housing Authority
and the Development Authority of DeKalb County. These entities have not met the established criteria for inclusion in this report. However, any
amounts appropriated for disbursement to these entities as well as any amounts for which the County has contractual lizbility have been included in the
County's financial statements. The Fulton-DeKalb Hospital Authority is considered a joint venture between DeKalb County and Fulton County, Georgia,
and summary financial information is provided in the notes to the financial statements.




Annual budgets are adopted by the Board of Commissioners each year for the General, Special Revenue and Debt Service Funds. The level of
control (the level at which expenditures may not exceed appropriations) for each annual budget is the department level within each fund. Revenue and
appropriation adjustments may be made, when the Board of Commissioners approves property tax millage rates. Supplemental allocations can also be
made by the Board of Commissioners from the County's General Fund contingency account to fund unforeseen expenditures within the County's
Governmental Funds' departments. Individual departments are charged with operating within the scope of their allocated budget and intra-departmental
transfers must be submitted for approval by the Finance Department and/or the Chief Executive Officer

Factors Affecting Financial Condition

DeKalb County's overall financial position remains favorable. The County has enjoyed good economic health during the past few years, and has
experienced an unemployment rate consistently below the rate at the national level. The County’s unemployment rate of 4.5% as of December 2003 was
below the national rate of 5.7%. In accordance with the Homestead Option Sales Tax, the County has granted a homestead exemption on operating
levies of 100% from 1999 through 2001, and the exemption was 86.8% and 60.58% in 2002 and 2003, respectively. As a result of this exemption and
other favorable conditions, the number of homestead properties in the County has increased from 125,000 in 1999 to 144,571 in 2003. Current economic
conditions have slowed this pace. New construction decreased in 2003, by $94,175,480, with over $1,312,000,000 in construction value on building
permits issued. Revenue from business related fees and taxes (hotel/motel, alcoholic beverage, business licenses and building permits) increased over
$147,000 during 2003 compared to 2002. At the end of 2003, the County’s sales tax receipts showed signs of improvement.

DeKalb County is a mature County, which is mostly developed in many areas. The Atlanta metropolitan area, of which DeKalb is a part, serves as a
center for banking, communications, transportation, accounting, insurance, and other services.

The 2003 budget continued the trend begun in 1991 to minimize the property tax burden on the citizens of the County. For 2003, there was an increase
in the tax-supported budgets of 10%. The Fund Balance at year-end was $22.5 million in the General Fund.

On March 20, 2001, the voters in the unincorporated areas approved a referendum to issue $125,000,000 in Special Recreation Tax District General
Obligation Bonds. These bonds were issued on October 11, 2001, and the proceeds are being used to acquire open space and park land (70%) and to
improve and construct park and recreation facilities (30%).

In past years DeKalb relied heavily on the property tax as a primary revenue source as it did not have a local option sales tax. On March 18, 1997, the
voters of the County approved a permanent one-percent Homestead Option Sales Tax, to be effective July 1, 1997. In 2003, 80% of this sales tax was
used to reduce property taxes (in the form of an increased homestead exemption) collected for County operations (including General Government, Fire
Protection, Hospital Services and Special District Services) from homestead properties. Local Sales Tax Revenues from July 1, 1997 through December
31, 1998 are being used for major capital projects throughout the County. $16.4 million was dedicated to capital outlay (infrastructure) projects from
HOST funds in 2003.

Cash management policies and practices.
The County maintains a pooled cash and investments account for most County funds. The County seeks to obtain market rates of return on its

investments, consistent with constraints imposed by its safety objectives, cash flow considerations, and Georgia state laws. Safety of principal is the
foremost objective. Competitive bids are required on all County investments. Tax anticipation notes were not issued in 2003.




Risk Management and Employee Services

DeKalb County has a Risk Management and Employee Services Division within its Finance Department. The focus of this office is to minimize loss to
the County through data analysis and loss prevention programs, and to administer the County's surety, liability, and employee group insurance programs
including workers’ compensation. The number of workers’ compensation claims increased slightly from 963 in 2002 to 1,012 in 2003.

Pension and other post employment benefits.

The County sponsors a single-employer defined benefit pension plan for all County employees. Each year, an independent actuary engaged by the
pension plan calculates the amount of the annual contribution that the County must make to the pension plan to ensure that the plan will be able to fully
meet its obligations to retired employees on a timely basis. As of April 1, 2003, the date of the last actuarial report, the County’s pension plan had funded
106% of the actuarial accrued liability of the plan.

The County also offers to provide post employment health benefits for all retirees. These benefits are financed on a pay-as-you-go basis. GAAP does not
require governments to report a liability in the financial statements in connection with an employer’s obligation to provide these benefits.

Awards

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in
Financial Reporting to DeKalb County for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended December 3 1, 2002. This was the 25th
consecutive year that the government has achieved this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must
publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting
principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet
the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

Acknowledgments
The preparation of this report has been accomplished through the efficient and dedicated effor's of the entire staff of the Finance Department, particularly
the Accounting Services Division, and through the cooperation of the various elected officials. I wish to express my sincere appreciation to everyone

who contributed to its preparation. .
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303 Peachtree Street, N.E.
Suite 2000
Atlanta, GA 30308

Independent Auditors’ Report

Chief Executive Officer and Honorable Members
of the Board of Commissioners
DeKalb County, Georgia:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activiies, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component urits, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of DeKalb County, Georgia (the “County”) as of and for the year ended December 3 1, 2003, which collectively comprise the County’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the management of the County. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these
financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the DeKalb County Board of Health, which represent 83% and 71%, respectively, of the assets and
revenues of the aggregate discretely presented component units. Those financial statements were andited by other auditors whose report thercon has been furnished to us, and our opinion,
insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the DeKalb County Board of Health, is based on the report of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audit and the report of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements referred to above present fzirly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of DeKalb County,
Georgia, as of December 31, 2003, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund,
Special Tax District — Designated Services Fund, and the Special Tax District — Unincorporated Fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 12, 2004 on our consideration of the County’s internal control over financial reporting and
on our tests of its compliznce with certain provisions of laws, regulatiors, contracts, and grants. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our aud:t.

The management’s discussion and analysis, the schedule of funding progress, and the schedule of eniployer contributions on pages 9 through 18 and page 51, respeciively, are not a required
part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain
limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of managerrent regarding the methods of measarement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we
did not audit the information and express no opinion on it. ‘

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the finencial statements that collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements. The combining nonmajor fund
financial statements, and introductory and statistical sections listed in th table of contents, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements. The combining nonmajor fund financial statements have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are
fairly stated in all material respects ir relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

KPMe LP

March 12, 2004




Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of DeKalb County (County), we offer readers of the County’s financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial
activities of the County for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003.

Financial Highlights

The assets of the County exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year by $1,592,371,000 (net assets). Of this amount, $133,309,000 (unrestricted
net assets) may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

The County’s total net assets increased by $86,846,000 during 2003. $34,547,000 of the increase was due to business-type activities with the governmental
funds experiencing an increase of $52,299,000.

As of the close of the fiscal year, the County’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $228,290,000, a decrease of $15,542,000 in
comparison with the previous year.

At the close of the fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the General Fund was $16,709,000, or 7.9% of total general fund expenditures.

The County’s total debt increased by $72,220,000 (10%) during the current fiscal year. The County refinanced several bond issues and combined that with
financing of new capital projects primarily in water & sewer.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the County’s basic financial statements. The County’s basic financial statements
comprise three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the
County’s finances, in 2 manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the County’s assets and liabilities, with the difference betwesn the two reported as net assets.
Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the County is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net assets changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net
assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods.

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the County that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges
(business-type activities). The governmental activities of the County include general government, public safety, civil and criminal court system, planning,
public works, community development, parks and recreation, health and welfare, and other miscellaneous activities. The business-type activities of the
County include water and sewerage, sanitation, and DeKalb-Peachtree Airport, and the initial activity of the newly created Stormwater Utility Fund, which
will begin significant operations in 2004.




The government-wide financial statements include not only the County itself (known as the primary government), but also a legally separate Board of
Health and the Public Library Board for which the County is financially accountable. Financial information for these component units is reported
separately from the financial information presented for the primary government itself.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 19 - 20 of this repart.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific
activities or objectives. The County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds
of the County can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the government-
wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows
and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful
in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the information
presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and
the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between
governmental funds and governmental activities.

The County maintains thirty-eight individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general fund, the special tax district designated services fund,
the special tax district unincorporated fund, and the 2001 parks bond fund, which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other thirty-four funds
are combined into a single aggregated presentation. :

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 21 - 27 of this report.

Proprietary funds. The County maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as
business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The County uses enterprise funds to account for its water and sewerage system fund,
sanitation fund, DeKalb Peachiree Airport fund, and Stormwater Utility fund. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and
allocate costs internally among the County’s various functions. The County uses internal service funds to account for its vehicle maintenance fund, vehicle
replacement fund, and risk management fund. Because the risk management fund predominantly benefits governmental activities rather than business-type
functions, it has been included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Because the vehicle maintenance fund and
vehicle replacement fund predominantly benefit business-type functions rather than governmental, they have been included within business-type activities
in the government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial
statements provide separate information for the water and sewerage system fund, the sanitation fund, the DeKalb Peachtree Airport fund, and Stormwater
Utility fund, all of which are considered to be major funds of the County. The Stormwater Utility Fund began initial operations in 2003 and expects to
have significantly more activity in 2004 and thus is reported as a major fund. Conversely, all three internal service funds are combined into a single

10
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aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements. Individual fund data for the internal service funds is provided in the form of
combining statements elsewhere in this report. ‘

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 28 - 30 of this report.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected
in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support the County’s own programs. The accounting
used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 31 - 32 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the
government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 35 - 55 of this report.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In the case of the County, assets exceeded
liabilities by $1,592,371,000 at the close of the fiscal year.

By far the largest portion of the County’s net assets (85 percent) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, infrastructure, equipment,
etc.), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The County uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens;
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the County’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it
should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other scurces, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to
liquidate these liabilities.




DeKalb County’s Net Assets
December 31, 2003 and 2002
(In thousands of dellars)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
Current and other assets $289,395 $292,046 $302,300 $368,593 $591,695 $660,639
Capital assets 851,063 778,523 1,069,265 899,709 1,920,328 1,678,232
Total assets 1,140,458 1,070,569 1,371,565 1,268,302 2,512,023 2,338,871
Long-term liabilities 335,186 320,190 532,893 473,148 868,079 793,338
Other liabilities 25,518 22,924 26,055 17,084 51,573 40,008
Total liabilities 360,704 343,114 558,948 490,232 919,652 833,346
Net assets: '
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 670,833 618,643 681,681 646,745 1,352,514 1,265,388
Restricted 57,533 57,159 49,015 59,822 106,548 116,981
Unrestricted 51,388 51,653 81,921 71,503 133,309 123,156
Total net assets $779,754 $727,455 $812,617 $778,070 $1,592,371 $1,505,525

An additional portion of the County’s net assets (7 percent) represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The
remaining balance of unrestricted net assets ($133,309,000) may be used to meet the governments’ ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the County is able to report positive balances in all three categories of net assets, both for the government as a whole,
as well as for its separate governmental and business-type activities.

The government’s net assets increased by $86,846,000 during the current fiscal year. Business-type activities increased by $34,547,000 while
governmental activities had an increase of $52,299,000.

The most significant changes between 2002 and 2003 in both governmental activities and business-type activities relate to additions to capital assets and

an increase in debt predominately related to those capital assets. See more explanation of the capital asset and long-term debt activity in later sections of
this analysis.
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Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions
General revenues:
Property taxes
Sales taxes
Other taxes
Grants not restricted to specific programs
Other
Total revenues
Expenses:
General government
Public safety
Civil and criminal court system
Planning
Public works
Community development
Parks and recreation
Library
Health and welfare
Miscellaneous
Interest on long-term cebt
Water
Sewer
Stormwater Utility
Sanitation
Airport
Total expenses
Increase in net assets before transfers
Transfers
Increase in net assets
Net assets-beginning
Net assets-ending

DeKalb County’s Changes in Net Assets

For the Years Ended December 31, 2003 and 2002

(In thousands of dollars)
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Governmental Activiies Business-type Activities Total

2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
$90,929 $81,867 $175,670 $166,755 $266,599 $248,622
24,165 20,200 - - 24,165 20,200
30,969 6,391 7,602 13,974 38,571 20,365
219,265 189,354 - 219,265 189,354
81,684 83,143 - 81,684 83,143
€6,502 62,872 - 66,502 62,872
17,307 16,418 - - 17,307 16,418
6,332 5,243 3,079 8,567 8,411 13,810
537,163 465,488 186,351 189,296 723,504 654,784
67,434 60,307 - 67,434 60,307
148,775 137,806 - 148,775 137,806
110,237 103,493 - 110,237 103,493
1,599 1,374 - 1,599 1,374
50,950 47,761 - 50,950 47,761
9,444 8,266 - 9,444 8,266
18,003 20,600 - 18,003 20,600
11,286 10,681 - - 11,286 10,681
34,539 34,590 - 34,539 34,590
12,181 10,842 - 12,181 10,842
19,796 18,977 , - - 19,796 18,977
- - 48,421 44,917 48421 44,917
56,843 52,728 56,843 52,728
- 597 - 597 -
- - 43,896 46,696 43,896 46,696
- - 2,657 2,582 2,657 2,582
484,244 454,697 152,414 146,923 636,658 601,620
52,909 10,791 33,937 42,373 86,846 53,164
(610) 1,569 610 (1,569) - -
52,299 12,360 34,547 40,804 86,846 53,164
727,455 715,095 778,070 737,266 1,505,525 1,452,361
$779,754 $727,455 $812,617 $778,070 $1,5692.371 $1,505,525




Analysis of governmental activities.

Net assets of the governmental activities of the County increased by $52,299,000 in 2003. Property taxes accounted for 41% of the governmental activities
revenues, sales taxes accounted for 15%, and charges for services accounted for an additional 17%. Public safety expenses accounted for 31% of governmental
activities expenses and were used for police, fire, and rescue services. The civil and criminal court system accountsd for an additional 23% of the total
expenses for governmental activities. General government expenses, which represented 14% of the total expenses for governmental activities, included the
general administration of the County such as management of finances, .informaticn systems, human resources, and facilities management, as well as the
executive and legislative functions of County government. Public works, which includes the management of roads, drainage, and transportation networks of
the County, accounted for 11% of the total expenses of the governmental activities.

Charges for services increased in the areas of emergency management services, golf course fees and court fees. Property tax collections increased partially as a
result of the lower homestead exemption (60.58% in 2003 compared to 86.8% in 2002) from the Homestead Option Sales Tax (HOST). As a result of low
mortgage interest rates, refinancings continued at a brisk pace, thereby, generating increased Intangible Recording taxes. With respect to significant changes
in expenses, general government increased due to a settlement of a lawsuit with the homebuilders association, and incurred additional lease payments for
voting equipment and major computer software upgrades. Planning expenses increased as a result of several consultant studies, and community development
assumed the responsibility for the Senior Centers in 2003. Group insurance costs increassd the miscellaneous expenses. Parks and recreation expenses
decreased as a result of the reorganization of the maintenance staff'to Facilities Management.

Analysis of business-type activities.

Charges for services accounted for 94% of business-type activities revenues. Water expenses accounted for 32% of business-type activities expenses, sewer
expenses accounted for 37%, sanitation services accounted for 29%, and the Peachtree-DeKalb Airport accounted for the remaining 2% of expenses. The
Stormwater Utility program incurred expenses in 2003, and those activities will increase significantly in 2004.

Residential sanitation fees were increased effective July 1, 2002 from $186 per annum to $225 per annum. This fee remains one of the lowest fees in the
metropolitan area. Furthermore, the billing of this fee has been transferred to the tax bill to improve the collection rate. Sanitation expenses declined slightly
due to one-time expenses not recurring in 2003,

Water & sewer metered rates were increased by 19 percent effective December 2002, but remain the lowest fees in the metropolitan area. Rates were last
increased in 1997, and this recent increase supports a significant capital improvements program for the Water & Sewer Department. Operating expenses
increased slightly due to personnel expenses and cost of operating supplies.

Analysis of the County’s Funds.

Governmental Funds

As noted earlier, the focus of the County’s govemnmental fund statements is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of resources
available to spend. In its general and special revenue funds, the County reported combined ending fund balances of $46,974,000, a decrease of $1,814,000

over the prior year. Of this total fund balance for general and special revenue funds, $37,816,000 is unreserved. Additionally, the governmental funds include
the debt service and capital project funds with a total fund balance of $181,316,000 which will be spent on outstanding debt and capital projects of the County.

14




15

At the end of the year, fund balance in the General Fund was $22,513,000, representing a decrease of $5,022,000 from the fund balance in the prior year. The
decrease resulted from lower than anticipated revenues from property taxes and sales taxes.

The fund balance of the Special Tax District - Designated Services Fund at year-end was $5,149,000 which represented an increase of $4,951,000 from the
prior year.

The Special Tax District — Unincorporated Fund had a decrease in fund balance of $116,000 from the prior year to end the year with a fund balance of
$1,090,000.

The fund balance of the 2001 Parks Bond Fund decreased by $19,890,000 as bond proceeds were expended for the purchase of greenspace in the County.
Approximately 2,000 acres of greenspace have been purchased since the beginning of this program, with 490 acres purchased in 2003. Parks and recreation
facilities improvements are currently underway utilizing 30 percent of the bond funds.

Proprietary Funds

The County’s proprietary funds report the activities of the water and sewer, sanitation, airport and stormwater utility services within the County and report the
same level of activity, with an overall increase in net assets of $28,864,000, as the business-type activities described earlier only in greater detail. The increase
in net assets was predominately in the Water and Sewerage System which increased its net assets by $21,378,000. The increase resulted from revenues which
exceeded expenses of approximately $15 millior, which was consistent with the prior year, and infrastructure contributions from developers of $6.5 million.
The Sanitation Fund’s net assets increased by $6,402,000 as revenues exceeded expenditures for the year. Overall activity in the fund increased within the
fund from the prior year, with revenue, primarily user charges increasing 3.5% and expenses, primarily operating charges, decreasing 1.3%. The activity
within the Airport Fund remained consistent with the prior year.

Each of the funds has charges for its services as the major source of revenue within the fund with the expenses being predominately for salaries, employee
benefits, and operating services and charges. Additionally, the Water and Sewerage System has significant expenses for interest on its long-term bonds and for
depreciation of the capital assets of the system.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Property taxes increased in the General Fund in 2003 as a result of a decrease in the Homestead Exemption from 86.8 percent to 60.58 percent. Rising
unemployment rates and slowing retail sales in the metropolitan economy, as a result of the overall national recession, impacted sales tax receipts. Investment
income declined sharply as interest rates remained low throughout the year. There were no significant changes between the original and final amended
budgets. Actual results differed from the amended budget due to the following reasons. Sales tax receipts continued to decline and property taxes were lower
than anticipated. Expenses exceeded the budgeted amounts for five departments: Registrar & Elections for lease payments on voting equipment; Juvenile
Court attorney fees; and Public Works-Administration for moving expenses for the new director; Parks and recreation granted more scholarships than
expected, and the County Jail fund collected more revenue than anticipated, which was subsequently transferred to the General Fund.

Capital Assets

The County’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of year-end, amounts to $1,920,328,000 (net of accumulated
depreciation). The investment in capital assets includes land, land improvements, buildings, plants, infrastructure, vehicles and portable equipment, other




equipment, leaseholds, and construction in progress. Among the significant activity in 2003 was the County’s acquisition of more than 490 acres of
greenspace in 2003, the acquisition of a new office building for $11 million, and the completion of the Courthouse annex ($35 million).

The water & sewer system is nearing completion of the water treatment plant valued at $155 million. Improvements to the landfill have also been
undertaken. Readers should refer to note 7 of the financial statements for more information on capital asset activity.
Capital asset balances at year-end are as follows:

Capital Assets

December 31, 2003 and 2002
(In thousands of dollars, net of depreciation)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2003 2002 - 2003 2002 2003 2002

Land $177,753 $144,259 $40,620 $40,334 $218,373 $184,593
Land improvements 16,026 16,609 44,296 32,564 60,322 49,173
Buildings 185,342 187,930 5,660 6,001 191,002 193,931
Plants - 104,459 89,073 104,459 ' 89,073
Infrastructure 384,578 366,183 421,941 386,336 806,519 752,519
Vehicles and portable
equipment - 50,509 51,611 50,509 51,611
Other equipment 21,887 23,975 41,103 38,244 62,990 62,219
Leaseholds - 152,320 155,797 152,320 155,797
Construction in progress 65,477 39,567 208,357 99,749 273,834 139,316

Total $851,063 $778,523 $1,069,265 $899,709 $1,920,328 $1,678,232

Debt Administration

DeKalb County's financial condition is demonstrated by the ratings of its bonds as of year-end:

Moody's Investors Standard

Service and Poors
General Obligation Aaa TAAY
Refunded General Obligation Aaa AAA
Water and Sewerage System Revenue Aa2 AA
Refunded Water and Sewerage Revenue Aaa AAA
Certificates of Participation o ~Aal AA
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Outstanding Debt at Year End
(In thousands of dollars)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
General obligation bonds $250,345 $267,640 - - $250,345 $267,640
Certificates of participation 25,000 9,270 - - 25,000 9,270
Revenue bonds 15,000 - $505,365 $446,580 520,365 446,580
Total $290,345 $276,910 $505,365 $446,580 $795,710 $723,490

In 2001, the County’s General Obligation debt was upgraded by Moody’s to Aaa. Except for bonds, which are supported by bond insurance or other
forms of credit enhancement, DeKalb County's ratings for 2003 are equal to or higher than those of all but three local governments in the State.

On a budget basis, $8,675,000 of general obligation bonds were retired during the year. The County's gross principal amount, less debt retirement funds
available on general obligation debt at year-end was $239,531,000. The constitutional debt limit for general obligation bonds is 10% of the assessed value
of taxable property within the County. Based on current gross assessed property values of $21,506,000,000, the County's net outstanding debt of
$239,531,000 represented only 1.11 % of gross assessed property values.

In terms of bonded debt per capita, the net direct general obligation debt outstanding at year-end represented $346.64 per capita compared to $368.31 in
the previous year. Total direct and overlapping debt applicable to the County at year-end was $320,881,000 or $464.17 per capita. This compares to last
year's amount of $478.02. Detzils of direct and overlapping debt and legal debt margin are contained in the Statistical Section of this report.

Readers should refer to note 8 of the financial statements for more information on long-term debt activity. The County refinanced several general
obligation issues and the certificates of participation and increased the amount outstanding to $25 million to acquire and renovate additional general
governmental office space, and to renovate and furnish existing courthouse space. The DeKalb Building Authority issued $15 million in revenue bonds,
on behalf of the County, to acquire land for a Juvenile Justice Center, and to construct a related parking structure. The County will make lease payments to
the DeKalb Building Authority.

The water & sewer system refinanced $110 million and issued $70 million in new debt to complete the County's obligation for the Nancy Creek Tunnel
with the City of Atlanta, and to construct related office space and pipeline improvements.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

In accordance with the Homestead Option Sales Tax legislation, the County may allocate up to 20 percent of the previous year’s receipts to capital outlay
projects. The 2004 Budget adopted by the County provides for the use of 16.8 percent, or $13.745 million for capital outlay projects. As a result the
Homestead Exemption will decrease to approximately 60 percent from 60.58 percent in 2003. ¢




The County governing body adopted a Stormwater Utility Program and fee in December 2002. This program will begin to address the County’s needs in the
area of stormwater collection and treatment. The fee will start to be collected on the 2004 tax bill.

As a result of the Homestead Exemption of 100 percent in 1999 through 2001, and 86.8 and 60.58 percent exemption in 2002 and 2003, respectively, and as a
result of historically low home mortgage interest rates, the number of homestead properties in the County has increased from 125,000 in 1999 to 144,571 in
2003, or an increase of 15.7 percent. Population has increased from 610,000 in 1999 to 691,300 in 2003. This increase has impacted the need for services,
especially, in the areas of public safety and the business-type activities (sanitation and water & sewer).

Requests for Information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the County’s finances for all those with an interest in the government’s finances.

Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to the Office of the Finance
Director, 1300 Commerce Drive, Decatur, GA 30030, 404-371-2741.
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CeKalb County, Georgia
Statement of Net Assets

December 31, 2003
(in thousands of dollars)

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type Component
ASSETS Activities Activities Total Units
Cash and cash equivalents $ 232846 $ 79,596 $ 312,442 T'—337§-
Investments - - - 664
Accounts receivable (net) 4073 25,480 29,553 1,671
Taxes receivable (net) 45499 - 45,499 -
Due from other governments 4342 700 5,042 1,754
Due from others 637 - 637 -
Inventories and prepaid items 694 3,103 3,797 63
Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents - 182,770 182,770 344
Deferred bond issuance costs 1304 10,651 11,955 -
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) 851,063 1,069,265 1,920,328 2,151

Total assets 1,140,458 1,371,565 2,512,023 10,126

LIABILITIES .
Accounts payable 11342 1,072 12,414 507
Claims and judgments payable - 300 300 -
Accrued interest payable 1,339 - ) 1,339 -
Other accrued liabilities 8,383 1,746 10,129 378
Advanced payments and deposits 2,158 186 2,344 -
Due to other governments 1874 1,555 3,429 -
Due to others 422 - 422 1,559
Liabilities payable from restricted assets:

Accounts payable - 5,519 5,519 -

Accruec interest onrevenue bonds - 5,988 5,988 -

Due to others - 9,689 9,689 -
Noncurrent liabilities:

Due within one year 25945 9,945 35,890 6

Due in more than one year 309,241 522,948 832,189 1,500

Total liabilities 360,704 558,948 919,652 3,950

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assels, net of related debt 670,833 681,681 1,352,514 2,091
Restricted for debt service 10,161 6,997 17,158 -
Restricted for grants 2,763 - 2,763 347
Restricted for capital prcjects 44 309 42,018 86,627 . -
Unrestricted 51,388 81,921 133,309 3,738
Total net assets $ 779,754 $ 812,617 $ 1,592,371 $ 6,176

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part o this statement.




DeKaib County, Georgia
Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended December 31, 2003
(ir thousands of dollars)

Program Revenues Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets
Operating Capital Primary Government
Charges for Granis and Grants and Govemmental Business-type Component
Eunctions / Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Aciivities Activities Total Units
Primary government:
Governmental activities:
General government $ 67,434 $ 13,742 $ 4,345 $ 1,365 $  (47,982) $ - $ (47,982 $ -
Public safety 148,775 17,332 6,133 40 (125,270) - (125,270} -
Civil and criminal court system 110,237 42,628 1,950 - (65,659) - (65,659) -
Planning 1,599 97 - - (1,502) - (1,502; -
Public works 50,950 12,824 668 28,363 (9,095) - (9,095! -
Community development 9,444 - 8,758 - (686) - (686; -
Parks and recreation 18,003 3,232 474 1,201 (13,096) - (13,096, -
Library 11,286 - - - (11,286) - (11,286) -
Health and welfare 34,539 388 1,621 - (32,530) - (32,530) -
Miscellaneous 12,181 : 686 216 - (11,279) - (11,279) -
Interest on long-term debt 19,796 - - - (19,796) - (19,796) -
Total governmental activities 484,244 90,929 24,165 30,969 (338,181) - (338,181) -
Business-type activities:
Water 48,421 55,383 - 3,023 - 9,985 9,985 -
Sewer 56,843 65,015 - 3,549 - 1,721 11,721 -
Sanitation . 43,896 52,506 - - - 8,610 8,610 -
DeKalb Peachtree Airport -~ 2,657 2,766 - 1,030 - 1,139 1,139 -
Stormwater Utility 597 - - - - (597) (597)
Total business-type activities 152,414 175,670 - 7,602 - 30,858 30,858 -
Total primary govarnment 636,658 266,599 24,165 38,571 (338,181) 30,858 (307,323) -
Component units:
Board of health 30,015 6,365 18,004 - - - - (5,646)
Public library board 12,392 647 47 - - - - (11,698)
Total component units $ 42,407 $ 7,012 $ 18,051 $ - - - - (17,344)
General revenues:
Sales tax 81,684 - 81,684 -
Property tax 219,265 - 219,265 -
Motor vehicle tax 15,832 - 15,832 -
Hotel / motel tax 5,392 - 5,392 -
Alcoholic beverage tax 4,010 - 4,010 -
Insurance premium tax 23,561 - 23,561 -
Business license tax 17,707 - 17,707 -
Payments from the County - - - 15,387
Unrestricted investment earnings 2,627 3,079 5,706 13
Grants not restricted to specific purpose 17,307 - 17,307 1,107
Miscellaneous 4,223 - 4,223 1,440
Loss on cash defeasance of bonds (518) - (518) -
Transfers (610) 610 - -
Total general revenues and ‘ransfers 290,480 3,689 394,169 17,947
Change in net assets 52,299 34,547 86,846 603
Net assets - beginning 727,455 778,070 1,505,525 5,573
Net assets ~ ending $ 779,754 $ 812,617 $ 1,592,371 $ 6,176

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.




ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Taxes receivable (net)
Accounts receivable (net)
Due from other governments
Due from other funds
Due from others
Inventories

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Accounts and contracts payable
Other accrued liabilities
Advance payments and deposits
Due to other governments
Due to other funds
Due to others
Deferred revenue
Total liabilities
Fund balances:
Reserved for encumbrances
Reserved for inventories
Unreserved, reported in:
General fund
Special revenue funds
Debt service funds
Capital projects furds
Total fund balences
Total liabilities and fund balances

DeKalb County, Georgia
Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet
December 31, 2003
(in thousands of dollars)

Special Tax
District - Special Tax 2001 Other Total
Designated District - Parks Governmental Governmental
General Services Unincorporated Bonds Funcs Funds
19,042 $ 6,952 $ - 85,548 $ 112,349 $ 223,891
10,998 1,460 26,700 - 6,341 45,499
2,989 18 - - 1,066 4,073
- - - - 4,342 4,342
3,240 1,219 - - - 4,459
- - - 511 - 511
131 - - - - 131
36,400 9,649 26,700 86,059 124,098 282,906
5,739 1,887 355 - 2,308 10,489
4,736 2,128 115 - 1,404 8,383
341 - 845 - 972 2,158
- - 1,006 - 868 1,874
- - 1219 - 3,114 4,333
422 - - - - 422
2,649 785 22070 - 1,453 26,957
13,887 4,500 25610 - 10,619 54,616
5,673 904 57 6,136 11,259 24,119
13 - - - - 131
16,709 - - - - 16,709
- 4,155 1,033 - 15,919 21,107
- - - - 11,500 11,500
- - .- 79,923 74,801 154,724
22,513 5,149 1,090 86,059 113,479 228,290
36,400 $ 9,649 $ 26,700 86,059 $ 124,098 $ 282,906

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DeKalb County, Georgia

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
To the Statement of Net Assets
(in thousands of dollars)

December 31, 2003

Total fund balances for governmental funds $ 228,290
Total net assets reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets is different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. 851,063

An internal service fund is used by management to charge the costs of risk management to individual funds. The
assets and liabilities of the risk management fund have been allocated to the governmental activities on the

Statement of Net Assets. (1,627)
Some cf the County's taxes will be collected after year-end, but are not available soon enough to pay for the current

period's expenditures, and therefore are reported as deferred revenue in the funds. 26,957
Deferred bond issuance cost is not racognized as an asset in the governmental funds. 1,304

Long-term liabilities applicable to the County's governmental activities are not due and payable in the current period
and accordingly are not reported as fund liabilties. Intersst on long-term debt is not accrued in governmental funds,
but rather is recognized as an expenditure when due. Al liabilities - both current and long-term - are reported in the
Statement of Net Assets.

Accrued interest on bonds $ (1,339)
Contractual obligations payable (4,509)
Certificates of participation payable (25,000)
Bonds payable (265,345)
Unamortized premium on bonds payable (6,419)
Deierred loss on debt refunding 4,908
Claims and judgments not accounted for in the intemal service funds (500)
Compensated absences (28,029)
Total long-term fiabilities (326,233)
Total net assets of governmental activities $ 779,754

The notes tc the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.




DeKalb County, Georgia
Governmental Funds

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

For tie Year Ended December 31, 2003
(in thousands of dotlars)

Special Tax
District - Special Tax 2001 Other Total
Designated District - Parks Governmental Governmental
REVENUES General Services Unincorporated Bonds Funds Funds
Taxes $ 176,327 $ 38,953 3 50,343 $ - $ 88,281 $ 353,904
Licenses and permits - 642 - 17,707 - 8,484 26,833
Use of money and property : 621 102 19 1,198 2,344 4,284
Intergovernmental 13,950 3,286 - 511 28,957 46,704
Fines and forfeitures 14,353 - 14,049 - 909 29,311
Charges for services 15,755 2,536 228 - 17,316 35,835
Miscellaneous 1,170 573 © 752 600 3,647 6,742
Total revenues 222,176 46,092 83,098 2,309 149,938 503,613
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General govemnment 53,610 - 1,151 - 7,259 62,020
Public safety 19,333 70,113 1,283 - 53,437 144,166
Cvil and criminat court system 103,750 - 2,528 - 2,996 109,274
Planning 1,239 - 330 - - 1,569
Public works 1,264 27,774 - 14,567 42,605
Community development - - - - 9,443 €443
Parks and recieation - 15,972 - - 1,725 17,697
Liorary 10,828 - - - - 1C,828
Health and welfare 10,439 - - - 23,521 383,960
Miscellaneous 7,576 2,228 370 - 1,338 11,512
Debt sarvice 3,220 - 243 - 31,899 35,362
Cash defeasance of bonds - - - - 9,788 9,788
Capita outlay:
General government - - - - 7,624 7,624
Public safety - - - - 481 481
Civil and criminal court system - - - - 24,910 24910
Public works - - - - 14,706 14,706
Parks and recreation - - - 22,199 1,929 24,128
Health and wefare - - - - 53 53
Other - - - - 32 32
Total expenditures 211,259 116,087 5,905 22,199 205,708 561,158
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 10,817 (69,995) 77,193 (19,890) (55,770) (57,545)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds of bond issuance - - - - 167,915 167915
Premium on bond issuance - - - - 6,953 6953
Payments to escrow agents - - - - (135,562) {135562)
Bonds issuance expense - - - - (1,416) (1416)
Contractual purchase obligations 3,358 - - - 1,365 4723
Transfers in 8,829 76,726 - - 33,732 119287
Transfers out (28,126) (1,780) (77,309) - (12,682) (119897)
Tctal other financing sources (uses) (15,939) 74,946 (77,309) - 60,305 42003
Net change in fund balance (5,022) 4,951 (116) (19,890) 4,535 (15542)
Fund balance - beginning 27,636 198 1,206 105,949 108,944 243832
Fund balance - ending . : $ 22,513 $ 5,149 $ 1,090 $ 86,059 $ 113,479 $ 228290

The noes to the financial statements are an integral part of this staterrent.
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DeKalb County, Georgia
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
And Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
To the Staiement of Activities
For the Year Ended December 31, 2003
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Net changein fund balance - total governmental funds

The change in net assets reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities is different because:

Governmental funds report capital outiays as expenditures. However, in the Statement of Activities the cost of those assets

is allocated over their estimated useful ives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital
outlays ($71,934) and donated infrastructure assets ($27,170) exceeded depreciation ($26,564) in the current period:

Bond proceeds are reported as financing sources in governmental funds and thus contribute to the change in fund balance.
In the Statement of Net Assets, however, issuing debt increases long-term liabilities and does not affect the Statement of

Activities. Similarly, repayment of principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds but reduces the liability in the
Statement of Net Assets. This adjustment combines the net changes of the following:

Bend sales $ (167,915)
Premium on bond sales {6,953)
Payments to escrow agents 135,562
Cesh defeasance of bonds 9,788
Loss on cash defeasance (518)
Bend issuance expense 1,417
Repayments of general obligation bonds 15,000
Amortization of bond issuance expense (112)
Amortization of premium on bond sales 534
Amortization of loss on bond refunding (445)

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting used in the governmental funds, expenditures are not recognized for
transactions that zre not normally paid vith expendable available financial resources. In the Statement of Activities,
however, which is presented on the accrual basis, axpenses and liabilities are reported regardiess of when financial
resources are available.In addition, interest on long-term debtis not recognized under the modified accrual basis of
accounting until due, rather than as it accrues.This adjustment combines the net changes of the following:

Claims and judgements $ 2,500
Compensated absences (909)
Cepital leases 56
Accrued interest on bonds 3,266

Deferred revenue in governmental funds is susceprible to full accrual on the Statement of Activities.

An internal service fund is used by management to charge the costs of risk management to incividual funds. The net
revenue of the risk management fund is reported with governmental activities. )

Change in net asssts of governmental activities

The notes tc the financial statements are an integral part of this stestement.

$ (15,542)

72,540

(13,642)

4,913

2,308

1,722

$ 52,299
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DeKalb County, Georgia
General Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

Non-GAAP Budget Basis (in thousands cf dollars)

Actual Variance with
Amounts Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts (Budgetary Over
Original Final Basis) (Under)
Reventes:
Praperty taxes $ 146,331 $ 147,194 $ 139,749 $ (7,445)
Sakes taxes 39,820 39,820 37,177 (2,643)
Use of money and property 58 112 612 500
Intergovernmental 15,721 14,051 13,950 (101)
Finss and forfeitures 11,770 12,059 14,353 2,294
Charges for services 16,220 16,220 15,442 (778)
Miscellaneous 2,673 2,997 1,170 (1,827)
Total revenues 232,593 232,453 222,453 (10,000)
Expenditures:
Current:
General government:
Chief executive officer 1,722 1,722 1,558 (164)
Board of commissioners 906 906 822 (84)
Law department 2,444 2,478 2,286 (192)
Ethice 2 2 - @)
Geographic information system 2,021 2,021 1,779 (242)
Facilites management 11,083 11,083 11,005 (78)
Purchasing 2,828 2,943 2,827 (116)
Human resources and merit system 3,262 3,262 2,568 (694)
Information systems 13,823 12,292 9,642 (2,650)
Finance 5,963 5,563 5,100 (463)
Property appraisal 4,592 4,592 4,378 (214)
Tax commissioner 5,818 5,918 5,814 (104)
Regisirar and elections 1,612 1,612 1,632 20
Total general government 55,676 54,394 49,411 (4,983)
Public safety
Admiristration and communications 2,289 3,658 2,937 (721)
Animzl control 1,909 1,909 1,947 38
Fire and rescue services 14,797 14,797 13,669 (1,128)
Total public safety 18,995 20,364 18,553 (1,811)
Civil and criminal court system:
Sheriff 57,236 57,267 56,665 (602)
Juvenie court 5,550 5,456 5,536 80
Superior court 7,383 7,383 6,898 (485)
Clerk superior court 4,052 4,270 4,054 (216)
State court 9,746 9,760 9,326 (434)
Solicitor state court 3,707 3,621 3,213 (408)
District attorney 7,915 7,888 7,644 (244)
Child advocate 304 304 275 (29)
Probate Court 1,478 1,478 1,430 (48)
Medical examiner 1,738 1,783 1,771 (12)
Public defender 5,086 5,114 5,089 (25)
Magistrate court 1,404 1,404 1,313 91)
Total civil and criminal court system 105,599 105,728 103,214 (2,514)

(continued)
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DeKalb County, Georgia
General Fund
Statement of Revenues, =xpenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2003
Non-GAAP Budget Basis (in thousands of dollars)

(continued)
Actual Variance with
Amounts Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts (Budgetary Over
Qriginal Final Basis}) (Under)
Expenditures (continued):
Current (continued):
Planning $ 1,277 $ 1,357 $ 1,184 $ (173)
Public works: :
Administration 286 286 304 18
Economic development 749 949 930 (19)
Total public works 1,035 1,235 1,234 (1)
Library system 11,037 11,037 10,782 (255)
Health ard welfare:
Public health 5,305 5305 5,234 (71)
Community service board 2,284 2284 2,284 -
Human and community development 774 774 769 5)
Family and children services 2,929 2193 2,157 (36)
Total health and welfare 11,292 10556 10,444 (112)
Miscellaneous:
Cooperative extension 1,095 1,095 1,033 (62)
Non-departmental 24,786 23161 6,974 (16,187)
Total miscellaneous 25,881 24256 8,007 (16,249)
Debt service 2,636 2636 2,552 (84)
Total expenditures 233,428 231563 205,381 (26,182)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (835) 890 17,072 16,182
Other fnancing sources (uses): .
Transfers in 8,460 8460 8,829 369
Transfers out (26,456) (28,181) (28,126) 55
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources
over expenditures and other uses (18,831) (18,831) (2,225) 16,606
Fund balance, beginning of year 18,831 18,831 18,831 -
Fund balance, end of year $ - $ - 16,606 $ 16,606
Explanation of differences between budget and GAAP:
Deficiency of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses - budget basis (2,225)
Differences - budget to GAAP:
Due to revenues:
Accrued receivables 12-31-2002 (6,873)
Accrued receivables 12-31-2€03 7,189
Deferred revenues 12-31-2002 2,057
Deferrsd revenues 12-31-2003 (2,649)
Due to expenditures:
Accrued payables 12-31-2002 3,464
Accrued payables 12-31-2003 (4,437)
Encumbrances 12-31-2002 (7,238)
Encumbrances 12-31-2003 5,673
Due to inventory changes 17
Net change in fund balance - GAAP basis $ (5,022)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DsKalb County, Georgia
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003
Non-GAAP Budget Basis (in thousands of dollars)

Major Special Revenue Funds Major Speciai Revenue Funds
Speciel Tax District -Designated Services Special Tax District - Unincomporated
Actual Variance witht Aclual Variance with
Amounts Finai Budget Amounts Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts (Budgetary Over Budgeted Amounts {Budgetary Over
) Original Final Basis) (Under} Original Final Basis) (Under)
Revenues:
Property taxes $ 40307 $ 39,668 $ . -36,789 $ (2,879) $ 550 $ 550 $ 485 $ (65)
Sales taxes 1700 1,700 2,441 741 20,550 20,550 20,340 (210)
Other taxes - - - . - 28,166 29,666 29,755 89
Licenses and permits 375 375 642 267 18,039 18,039 17,707 (332)
Use of money and property 114 114 99 {15) 15 15 18 4
Intergovernmental 4116 3,254 3,286 32 - - - -
Fines and forfeitures - - . - 12,500 12,500 14,049 1,549
Charges for services 3355 3,355 2,536 (819) 175 175 228 53
Miscellaneous 554 554 569 15 - 750 752 2
Total revenues 50521 49,020 46,362 (2,658) . 79,995 82,245 £3,335 1,090
Expenditures:
Current:
General govemment:
Chief executive officer - - - - 112 112 112 -
Finance - - - - 1,080 1,080 1,037 {43)
Total general government - - - - 1,192 1,192 1,149 (43)
Public safety:
Pofice 74277 72,470 69,952 (2,518) - - - -
Code enforcement - - - - 1,343 1,343 1,263 (80)
Total public safety 74,277 72,470 69,952 (2,518) 1,343 1,343 1,263 {80)
Civil and criminal court system - recorders court - - - - 2,752 2,752 2,622 {230}
Planning - - - - 740 740 330 (410)
Public works:
Transportation 8,931 8,931 7,867 (1,064) - - - -
Roads and dranage 21,143 21,148 19,218 {1,929) - - - -
Total public works 30,074 30,079 27,086 (2,993) - - - -
Parks and recreation 17,337 17,387 15,901 (1,486) - - - -
Miscellaneous 3,245 3,246 2,229 (1,017) 285 437 371 (66)
Debt service - - - - 243 i 243 243 -
Total expenditures 124,933 123,182 115,168 (8,014) 6,555 6,707 5,878 (829)
Excess (deficiency) of reverues over expenditures (74,412) (74,162) {68,806} 5,356 73,440 75,538 77,457 1,919
Other financing sources {uses):
Transfers in 73,800 75,300 76,726 1,426 - - - -
Transfers out (30) {1,780) (1,780) - (73,800) (75,898) (77,309) {1,411}
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and othersources . R
over expenditures and cther uses {642) (642) 6,140 6,782 (360) (360) 148 508
Fund balance, beginning of year 642 642 642 - 360 360 360 -
Fund balance, end of year $ - $ - 6,782 $ 6,782 $ - $ - 508 $ 508

Explanation of differences between budgetand GAAP:
Deficiency of revenues and other sourtes over expenditures and other uses - budjet basis 6,140 148
Differences - budget to GAAP:
" Due to revenues:

Accrued receivables 12-31-2002 (1,447) . (21,456)
Accrued receivables 12-31-2003 1,258 22,710
Deferred revenues 12-31-2002 705 20,579
Deferred revenues 12-31-2003 (785) (22,070)
Due to expenditures: .
Accrued payables 12-31-2002 1,872 96
Accrued payables 12-31-2003 (3,100) (115)
Encumbrances 12-31-2002 (686) (65)
Encumbrances 12-31-2003 994 57
Net change in fund balance - GAAP basis $ 4,951 $ (116)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.




DeKalb County, Georgia
Proprietary Funds Statement of Net Assets
Decemter 31, 2003
(in thousands of dollars)

Water and DekKalb- Internal
Sewerage Peachtree Stormwater Service
ASSETS System Sanitation Airport Utility Total Funds
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,122 $ 32,543 $ 2,799 $ 280 41,744 $ 46,807
Accounts receivable (net) 25,237 91 152 - 25,480 -
Due from other governments 416 - 284 - 700 -
Inventories and prepaid items 2,189 - - - 2,189 1,477
Restricted:
Cash and cash eguivalents 182,770 - - - 182,770 -
Total current assets 216,734 32,634 3,235 280 252,883 48,284
Noncurrent assets:
Deferred bond issuance costs 10,651 - - - 10,651 -
Capital assets (net) 935,463 35,924 45,123 - 1,0°6,510 52,755
Total noncurrent assets 946,114 35,924 45,123 - 1,027,161 52,755
Total assets 1,162,848 68,558 48,358 280 1,280,044 101,039
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 739 118 1 199 1,057 868
Claims and judgmenis payable, current portion - 300 - - 300 7,172
Obligation under captal leases, current portion 219 - - - 219 2,176
Other accrued liabilitizs 917 600 34 - 1,651 185
Advance payments and deposits 181 - 5 - 186 -
Due to other governments 1,555 - - - 1,655 -
Payable from restricted assets:
Accounts payablz 5,519 - - - 5,519 -
Revenue bonds gayable, currentportion 7,550 - - - 7,550 -
Accrued interest on revenue bonis 5,988 - - - 5,988 -
Due to others 9,689 - - - 9,689 -
Total current labilities 32,357 1,018 40 199 33,614 10,411
Noncurrent liabilities:
Claims and judgments payable, long term portion - - - - - 3,120
Landfill closure and pastclosure cost - 17,413 - - 17,413 -
Compensated absences payable 2,826 1,740 94 - 4,660 663
Obligation under capial leases, long term portion - - - - - 3,536
Revenue bonds payable, iong term portion 497,815 - - - 497,815 -
Unamortized premium on bonds payable 8,000 - - - 8,000 -
Deferred loss on debtrefunding (9,139) - - - (3,139) -
Total noncurrent labilities 499,502 19,153 94 - 518,749 7,318
Total liabilities 531,869 20,171 134 199 562,363 17,730
NET ASSETS .
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 553,591 35,924 - . 45,123 - 634,638 47,043
Restricted for debt service 6,997 - L - - 5,997 -
Restricted for capital projects : 42,018 - it - - 42,018 -
Unrestricted 28,383 12,463 : 3,101 81 44,028 36,266
Total net assets $ 630,989 $ 48,387 $ 48,224 $ 81 727,681 $ 83,309
Adjustment to reflect the consolodation of intemal service furd activities relaed to enterprise funds 84,936
Net assets of business-type activities 812,617

The notes to the financial statements arean integral part of this statement.
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DeKalb County, Georgia
Proprietary Funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets
For the Year Ended December 31, 2003
(In thousands of dollars)

29

Water and DekKaib- Internal
Sawerage Peachtree Stormwater Service
Operating revenues: System Sanitation Airport Utility Total Funds
Metered sales $ 106,119 $ - $ - - 106,119 $ -
Collection and disposal fees - 47 575 - - 47,575 -
Rental fees - - 2,713 - 2,713 -
Intergovernmental 2,536 - - - 2,536 85
Charges for services - - - - - 97,695
Miscellaneous 11,743 4,931 53 - 16,727 1,791
Total operating revenues 120,398 52,506 2,766 - 175,670 99,571
Operating expenses:
Salaries and employee benefits 32,700 21,702 1,163 - 55,565 7,418
Supplies 2,763 663 44 - 3,470 3,831
Operating services and charges 20,643 21,348 797 597 43,385 56,524
Maintenance and repairs 7,464 669 284 - 8,417 7,475
Leasehold operating expenses 11,326 - - - 11,326 -
Depreciation and amortization 23,522 2,015 483 - 26,020 17,028
Labor, overhead, ard vehicle charges capitalized (5,237) = N - (5,237) -
Total operating expenses 93,181 46,397 2,771 597 142,946 92,276
Operating income (loss) 27,217 6,109 (5) (597) 32,724 7,295
Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Interest income 2,740 306 33 - 3,079 341
Interest expense (14,851) - - - (14,851) (231)
Miscellaneous (300) - - - (300) -
Income (loss) before capital donatons and operating transfers 14,806 6,415 28 (597) 20,652 7,405
Capital donations 6,572 - 1,030 - 7,602 -
Transfers in - - - 678 678 -
Transfers out - (13) (55) - (68) -
Change in net assets 21,378 6,402 1,003 81 28,864 7,405
Net assets - beginning 609,611 41,985 47,221 - 75,904
Net assets - ending $ 630,989 $ 48,387 $ 48,224 81 $ 83,309
Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund activities related to enterprise funds 5,683
Change in net assets of business-type activities 34,547

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.




Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments to employees for services
Other operating revenues
Net cash provided (required) by oserating activiies

Cash flows from noncapital financng activities:
Transfers (to) / from other funds
Net cash provided (required) by noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Principal and interest paid on revenue bonds
Sale of revenue bonds
Refunding of revenue bonds
Bond issuance expenses
Payments on leases
Increase in escrow deposits
Capital donations
Net cash provided {required) by czpital and related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest on investments
Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivzlents
Cash and cash equivalents at beghning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operatng income (foss) to net cash provided (required)

by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Change in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in recsivables
(Increase) decrease in inventories
Increase (decrease) in payables
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities
Increase (decrease) in advance deposits
Net cash provided (required) by operating activities
Noncash capital donations
Capital assets acquired through capital leases
The notes to the financial statemen's are an integral part of this statement.

DeKalt County, Georgia
Proprietary Funds
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2003
(In thousands of dollars)

Water and DeKalb- . Internai
Sewerage Peachtree Stormwater Service-
System Sanitation Airport Utility Total Funds
$ 98,926 $ 50,609 $ 2,679 $ - 162,214 $ 99,571
(37,455 (22,561) (1,123) (398) (61,537) (65,450)
(32,510} (21,600) (1,137) - (55,247) {7,452)
14,578 4,922 53 - 18,553 -
43,539 11,370 472 (398) 54,083 26,669
- (13) (55) 678 610 -
- (13) (55) 678 610 -
(169,322) (6,639) (1,838) - (177,799) (14,288)
(30,001) - - - (3,001) -
188,005 - - - 188,005 -
(118,218) - - - (118,218) -
(1,268) - - - (1,268) -
(53) - - - (53) (2,050)
5,048 - - - 5,048 -
192 - - 834 - 1,026 -
(125,617) (6,639) (1,004) - (133,260) (16,338)
2,755 306 33 - 3,094 341
2,755 308 33 - 3,094 341
(79,323) 5,024 (554) 280 (74,573) 10,672
268,215 27,519 3,353 - 299,087 36,135
188,892 32,543 2,799 280 224,514 46,807
27,217 6,109 (5) (597) 32,724 7,295
23,522 2,015 483 - 2€,020 17,028
(7,012) 3,025 (34) - (4,021) -
137 - - - 137 21
(460) 122 19 199 (120) 2,310
134 29 8 - 241 15
1 - 1 - 2 -
43,539 11,370 472 (398) 54,983 26,669
6,262 - - - 6,262 -
S N $ B $ N $ N N $ 1,341
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DeKalb County, Georgia
Fiduciary Funds
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
December 31, 2003

(in thousands of dollars)

General
Employees' Agency
Pension Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ - $ 30,267
Investments 1,083,697 -
Accrued interest receivable 3,459 -
Taxes reveivable - 26,671
Total assets 1,087,156 56,938
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 313 -
Due to other funds 126 .
Due to others 123 56,938
Total liabilities 562 $ 56,938
NET ASSETS
Held in trust for pension benefits
and other purposes (see Note 9E) $ 1,086,594

The notes to the financial statement are an integral part of this statement.
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DeKalb County, Georgia
Fiduciary Funds
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003
(in thousands of dallars)

Additions:
Contributions:
Employer
Employee
Other
Total contributions
Investment earnings:
Dividends and interest
Net increase in fair market value of investmerts
Total investment earnings
Less investment expense
Net investmeni earnings
Total addifions

Deductions:
Benefit payments
Refunds of contributions
Administrative expenses
Total Deductions
Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

General
Employees'
Pension

1,288
1,352
68

2,708

22,475
151,699

174,174
(3,329)

170,845

173,553

44,807
198
285

45,290

128,263

958,331

$

1,086,594

The notes to the financial statement are an integral part of this statement.
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DeKalb County, Georgia
Component Units
Statement of Net Assets

December 31, 2003
(In thousands of dollars)

33

Public
Board of Library

ASSETS Health Board Total
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,987 $ 492 $ 3,479
Cash and cash equivalents, resticted 344 - 344
Investments - 664 564
Accounts receivable (nef) 1,578 93 1,871
Due from other governments 1,754 - 1,754
Prepaid items 63 - 63
Capital assets (net) 1,657 494 2,151

Total assets 8,383 1,743 10,126
LIABILITIES
Accounts and contracts payable 324 183 507
Other accrued liabilities 378 - 378
Due fo others 1,559 - 1,559
Noncurrent liabilites:

Due within one year - 6 6

Due in more than one year 1,446 54 1,500

Total liabilities 3,707 243 3,950
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets (net of related debt) 1,657 434 2,091
Restricted 344 3 347
Unrestricted 2,675 1,063 3,738

Total net assets $ 4,676 $ 1,500 $ 6,176

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.




DeKalb County, Georgia
Component Units
Statement of Activities

Year Ended December 31, 2003

(Inthousands of dollars)

Net (Expense) Revenue and

Changes in Net Assets

Program Revenues Public
Charges for Operating Grants Board of Library
Expenses Services and Contributions Health Board Tofal
Board of Health $ 30,015 $ 6,365 $ 18,004 $ (5,646) $ . - $ (5,646)
Public Library Board 12,392 647 47 - (11,698) (11,598)
~otal component units  $ 42,407 $ 7,012 $ 18,051 (5,646) (11,698) (17,344)
General revenues:
Intergovernmental, not restricted for specific programs - 1,107 1,107
Payments from DeKalb County 5,002 10,385 15,387
Unrestricted investment earrings - 13 13
Miscellaneous 1,263 177 1,440
Tctal general revenues 6,265 11,682 17,947
Change in net assets 619 (16) 603
4,057 1,516 5,573

Net assets ~ beginning

Net assets - ending

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

$ 4,676 $ 1,500 $ 6,176

34



DEKALB COUNTY, GEORGIA 35
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2003
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for governmental units. The County's significant accounting policies are described below.

(A) The Financial Reporting Entity

DeKalb County, Georgia (the "County") was created by legislative act in 1822, and operates under an elected Chief Executive Officer and County Commission (seven
members) form of government. As required by GAAP, the financial statements of the financial reporting entity include those of DeKalb County (the primary government), and
its component units. Also, the fiduciary activities of the County's pension plan and various constitutional officers, judges, and other judicial officials are included in the
fiduciary funds.These include the Tax Commissioner, Sheriff, Clerk of Superior Court, State Court, State Court Probation, Juvenile Court, Probate Court, and Magistrate
Court.

The component units discussed below are included in the County's financial reporting entity because of the County's financial accountability for the entities and the
significance of their operational and financial relationships with the County. In conformity with GAAP, the financial statements of the DeKalb County Board of Health and the
DeKalb County Public Library Board have been included as discretely presented component units. The component units column in the financial statements includes the
financial data for the County's two component units, as reflected in their most recent audited financial statements. These component units are reported in a column
separate from the Courty's financial information to emphasize that they are legally separate from the County. The following discreiely presented component units are
incorporated into the County's financial report:

DeKalb County Board of Health - The governing board of the Board of Health consists of seven members: The Chief Executive Officer of the County, the
Superintendent of the DeKalb County Board of Education (both by virtue of their offices), three members appointed by the County Commission, and two
members appointed by other jurisdictions. The County, by virtue of its appointments and the presence of the Chief Executive Officer on the board, controls a
majority of the Board of Health's governing body positions. Although the County does not have the authority to approve or modify the Board of Health's
operational and capital budgets, it does have tha ability tc control the amount of funding it provides to the Board of Health. Such funding is significant to the
overall operations of the Board of Health.

DeKalb County Public Library Board - The governing board of the Public Library Board consists of twelve members: the Chief Executive Officer of the County, the
Executive Assistart to the Chief Executive Officar (both by virtue of their offices), eight members appointed by the County Commission, and two members
appointed by other jurisdictions. The County, by virtue of its appointmenis and the presence of the Chief Executive Officer and the Executive Assistant to the
Chief Executive Officer on the Board, controls a majority of Public Library Board governing body positions. Although the County does not have the authority to
approve or modify the Public Library Board's operational and capital budgets, it does have the ability to control the amount of funding it provides to the Public
Library Board. Such funding is significant to the overall operations of the Public Library Board.

Both component units have June 30 year-ends, consistent with the practice of most organizations receiving significant funding from the State.

Complete financial statements of the individual component units can be obtained directly from their administrative offices. Addresses for these administrative offices
are as follows:

DeKalb County Board of Health DeKalb County Public Library Board
445 Winn Way Richardson Health Center 215 Sycamore Street
Decatur, GA 30030 Decatur, GA 30030




(B)

In 2003, the County established the DeKalb County Building Authority (the "Building Authority") which is governed by a board comprised solely of members appointed by the
CEO and Board of Commissioners. Although it is legally separate from the County's Board of Commissioners, the Building Authority is reported as if it were a part of the
primary government, as a blended component unit, because its sole purpose is to finance and construct County public buildings. The Building Authority's funds are

included as non-major debt service and capital projects funds. No separate financial statements are available.

The County is also responsible for appointing the members of the DeKalb County Housing Authority, but the County's accountability for the Authority does not extend
beyond making the appointments.

The Fulton-DeKalb Hospital Authority is considered a joint venture with Fulton County, Georgia. The Atlanta Regional Commission is considered a joint venture with
other governments of metropolitan Atlanta.

Basis of presentation

The government-wide financial statements (l.e. , the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) display information about the primary government and its
component units. These statements include the financial activiies of the overall government, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the
double-counting of internal activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the County. Governmental activities
generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange transactions. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees
charged to external partes.

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for the different business-type activities of the County and for each
function of the County's governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly
identifiable to a particuler function. Administrative overhead charges are included in direct expenses for the business-type activities. Program revenues include 1) fees,
fines, and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or
capital requirements of a particuler function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

The fund financial statements provide information about the Ccunty's funds, including its fiduciary funds. Separate statements for each fund category - governmental,
proprietary, and fiduciary - are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and proprietary funds, each displayed in a separate
column. All remaining governmental funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds. .

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, resul: from exchange transactions associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange
transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating revenues, such as investment earnings, result from transactions
not associated with the principal activity of the fund.

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the County in a trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, other governmental units, and/or other funds.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they
are needed.

The County reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the County's primary operaiing fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the genefal government, except those required to be accounted
for in another fund.

The Special Tax District Designated Services Fund accountsfor operations of the County's police, roads and drainage, and recreation departments. Financing is
provided by a specific annual property tax levy and operating transfers from the special tax district unincorporated fund. Such property taxes are used only to
provide police, roads and drainage, and recreation services for all residents of the County not provided with these services by other municipalities. 36
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: 37
The Special Tax District Unincorporated Fund accounts for operations of various County activities which collect revenues thet are restricted for use in the
unincorporated areas of the County.

The 2001 Parks Bonds Fund accounts for the proceeds from the 2001 general obligation parks bond issue and the related capital expenditures for parks.
The County reports the following major proprietary funds:

The Water and Sewerage System Fund accounts for the orovision of water and sewer services fo the residents of the County. All activities necessary to provide
such services are accounted for in this fund.

The Sanitation Fund accounts for the provision of sanitation services to residents of the County. All activities necessary to provide such services are accounted for
in this fund.

The DeKalb-Peachtree Airport Fund accounts for the provision of arrport services to the residents of the County. All activities necessary to provide such services
are accounted for in this fund.

The Stormwater Ufility Fund is a new proprietary fund that was initisted during 2003. It is categorized as a major fund because it is believed that it will meet the
necessary criteria in 2004. It accounts for the provision of a stormwater drainage system for residents of the County. All activiies necessary to provide such
services will be accounted for in this fund once it is fully implemented.

The County reports the following fiduciary funds:

The General Employees' Pension Fund accounts for accumulated resources for pension benefit payments to qualified County employees.
The agency funds account for the assets held by the County in a trustee capacity as an ageht for individuals, govemmental units, and/or other funds.

The County reports the following other fund types:

Internal service funds account for vehicle maintenance, vehicle replacement, and risk management related activities provided to other departments of the County on
a cost reimbursement basis.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting

The government-wide financial statements are reporied using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary
fund and fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows. Progerty taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all

eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are
recognized as soon as they are both measureable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the County considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end

of the current fiscal period, with the exception of grants which are recogrized when all eligibility requirements have been met. Expenditures generally are recorded when

a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and
judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds.
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Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have
been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. All cther revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the
government.

All governmental and business-type activities of the County follow FASB Statements and Interpretations issued on or before November 30, 1989, Accounting
Principles Board Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins, unless those pronouncements conflict with GASB pronouncements. The County has elected not to
follow the option allowed under GASB Statement 20 and thus does not follow any FASB Statements issued after November 30, 1989.

Budgetary Data

An operating budget is legally adopted each fiscal year for all governmental funds except capital projects funds. The level of control (the level at which expenditures
may not legally exceed appropriations) for each legally adopted annual operating budget is the department level.. Supplemental appropriations may be made annually
at mid-year by the Board of Commissioners. Supplemental appropriaticns are also made out of the County's General Fund contingency account by the Board of
Commissioners to fund unforesesn expenditures within the County's governmental funds at any time during the year. Presented final budgetary information reflects all
supplemental appropriations as legally adopted by the Board of Commissioners. Individual amendments were not material in relation to the original appropriations.

The Board of Commissioners must approve any department level changes to a previously adopted budget. Management may amend the budget w1thout seeking the
approval of the Board at any level below the department level.

In accordance with Georgia law, the County has project length balanced budgets for all capital projects funds.
The annual budget cycle begins in September of the preceding year when budget workbooks are distributed to each department. The County Code requires that the
Chief Executive Officer of the County submit a propcsed budget to the Board of Commissioners by December 15. The Chief Executive Officer and Board of

Commissioners advertise and conduct public hearings on the proposed budget in adherence to local ordinance and state faw and adopt a final budget prior to March 1.

The tax millage is set and tax bills are issued around July 1. A revised budget, based on fund balance carryovers and current revenue and expenditure trends, may be
adopted prior to this daie. Unencumbered appropriztions lapse at year-end.

Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the expenditure of funds are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the
appropriation, is employed in the governmental funds.

Property Taxes

Property tax billing and collection cycle dates are as follows: lien date - January 1 of each year; levy cate - Fourth Tuesday in June; due dates - August 15 and November
15; and collection dates - anytime during the year.

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments

Cash management pools which are used essentially as demand deposit accounts and investments with maturities within 90 days of purchase are considered cash
equivalents for purposes of the statement of cash flows. Investments are stated at fair value, based on quoted market prices.The Georgia Fund 1 (a local government

. investment pool) is not SEC registered, but is operated in a manner corsistent with the SEC's Rule 2a7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940. Therefore, fair value of

the County's investment in the Georgia Fund 1 is based on the price of the County's share in the pool. The Georgia Office of Treasury and Fiscal Services is the agency
with regulatory oversight for Georgia Fund 1. 38
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Inventories

Inventories are determined by actual physical count and are stated at cost (using average cost flow assumptions) for the governmental activities and at the lower of
average cost or market for the business-type activities. The consumption method is used to account for inventories.

Capital Assets

Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated fixed assets are recorded at ther estimated fair value at the date of
donation. General infrastructure assets consist of the road network assets that were acquired or that received substantial improvements subsequent to January 1, 1980
and are reported at estimated historical cost. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assetor materially extend assets lives are
not capitalized. The County capitalized $8,775,000 of interest incurred in business-type activities for the year. Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line
method over the following estimaled useful lives and with the following capitalization thresholds:

Estimated
Useful Lives Capitalization
Asset Class : (In years) Threshold

Buildings 20-50 $40,000 - 100,000
Land improvements 15-50 30,000 - 100,000
Infrastructure 10-50 20,000 - 100,000
Vehicles ‘ 1-10 2,000
Equipment 5 1,000

Restricted Assets

Proceeds from the sale of water and sewer revenue bonds plus interest earned on the investment of these funds are restricted to the construction of new capital facilities
and other improvements to the water and sewerage system. All monies in excess of those required to maintain the working capital of the water and sewerage system's
operations are transferred to a separate account and restricted to the construction of new capital facilities and other expenditures as allowed by the system's bond
resolutions. Sinking fund monies are restricted to the payment of bond principal and interest requiremants as they become due as well as the maintenance of required
reserves. Liabilities payable from these restricted assets are reported separately to indicate that the source of payment is the restricted asse's.

Claims, Judgments, and Compensated Absences

Liabilities for claims and judgments against the County, including estimated liabilities for claims incurred but not reported at year-end, have been accrued in the appropriate
funds. Liabilities for compensated absences have been accrued in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements and are all considered long-term
obligations of the County. A liability for these amounts is reported in the governmental funds only if they have matured.

Employees earn annual leave at the rate of 15 days per year for the first 5 years up to a maximum of 30 days per year after 25 years. Thereis no requirement that annual
leave be taken, but the maximum permissable accumulation atyear end is 60 days. Any accumulation of annual leave greater than 60 days is converted to sick leave at
year end. At termination, employees are paid for any accumulaied annual leave up to the 60 day maximum. Employees earn sick leave at the rate of 13 days per year with
no limitations. At terminztion accumulated sick leave is converted to annual leave at the rate of 15 days to 1 day and is subject to the 60-day limitation.
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Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Costs

State and federal laws and regulations require the County to place a final cover on its Seminole Road landfill when it stops accepting waste and to perform certain
maintenance and monitoring functions at the site for 30 years after closure. Although closure and postclosure care costs will be paid only n=ar or after the date that the -
landfill stops accepting waste, the County reports a portion of these closure and postclosure care costs as an operating expense in each period based on landfill
capacity used as of each balance sheet date. The $17,413,000 reported as landfill closure and postclosure cost liability at year-end represents the cumulative amount
reported to date based on the use of 82% of the estimated capacity of the landfill, net of related expenditures to date of $4,615,000. The County will recognize the
remaining estimated cost of closure and postclosure care of $4,836,000 as the remaining estimated capacity is filled. These amounts are based on what it would cost to
perform all closure and postclosure in 2003. Actual cost may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes in regulations. Closure and postclosure care
financial assurance requirements will be met by adjusting the sanitation rate structures in the business-type activities as required. The County expects to close the
current landfill in the year 2007 but has already acquired enough additional land to meet landfill needs through 2019.

Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2002 totals to conform to the classifications used in 2003.
Management Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and the reported amount of revenues end expenditures / expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

. Joint Ventures

DeKalb County is party to a contract with Fulton County and the Futon-DeKalb Hospital Authority (the "Authority") for the operation of Grady Memorial Hospital (the "Hospital").
The Hospital provides health services to indigent citizens of both counties. Three members of the Authority's Board of Trustees are appointed by the DeKalb County Board of
Commissioners with another seven members appointed by the Fulion County Board of Commissioners. The entire operations of the Authority are disclosed as a

component unit in the Fulton County, Georgia Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. DeKalb County has a financial interest in the Authority because operating deficits of
the Hospital, up to an annually predetermined amount, relating to indigent care must be funded by Fulton County or DeKalb County under the temrms of the contract. The
funding formula is based on the ratio of patient levels between the two counties. For the year, DeKalb County funded $14,135,000 of the Hospital's operating deficit. DeKalb
County has limited control over the operating budget of the Hospital but musi approve any debt issuance of the Authority. The Authority's debt is secured by a pledge of the
operating revenues of the Hospital. Payments to the Authority are made from the County's other governmental funds. Separate financial statements may be obtained from:
Fulton-DeKalb Hospital Authority; 80 Butler St SE; Atlantz Georgia 30314.

Condensed financial information for the Authority as of and for the year ended December 31, 2002 is as follows (in thousands of dollars) (Decerrber 31, 2003 amounts are

unavailable):
Total Assets $ 484,112 Total Operating Revenues $ 492,844
Total Liabilities $ 447,062 Total Operating Expenses $ 628,949
Total Equity $ 37,050 Nonopersting Revenue (Net) $ (456)
Current Debt : $ 10,155 Fulton County and DeKalb County Contributions $ 103,169
Long-Term Debt $ 255,758 Decrease In Retained Earnings $ (33,392)

Under Georgia law, the County, in conjunction with other cities and counties in metropolitan Atlanta, is a member of the Atlanta Regional Commission (ARC) and is required
to pay annual dues thereto. During the past year, the County paid $668,000 in such dues. Membership in the ARC is required by the Official Codz of Georgia Annotated
(OCGA) Section 50-8-34 which provides for the organizational structure of the ARC. The ARC Board membership includes the chief elected official of each county ant

40



municipality of the area. OCGA 50-8-39.1 provides that the member governments are liable for any debts or obligations of the ARC. Separate financial statements ma
obtained from: Atlanta Regional Commission; 40 Courtland St NE; Atlanta Georgia 30303.

There were no known related party transactions involving either joint venture.
. Budget Basis of Accounting

Due to legal requirements, revenues and appropriations for governmental funds are budgeted on a basis that is not consistent with GAAP. The actual results of operat:ons
on the budget basis for the General Fund and Major Special Revenue Funds are presented in this report.

The major differences between the budget and GAAP are:
(1) Revenues (principally property taxes, accounts receivable, grants, and interest receivables) are recorded when received in cash {budget) as opposed to
when susceptible to accrual (GAAP);
(2) Expenditures (principally payroll, workers' compensation, and purchases) are recorded when paid (budget) as opposed to when incurred (GAAP);
(3) Debt service requirements due January 1, 2004 are recorded as expenditures in 2003 (budget) as opposed to 2004 when obligations are due (GAAP);
(4) Encumbrances are recognized as expenditures (budget) as opposed to reservation of fund balance (GAAP); .
(5) Annual changes in inventory are recorded as expenditures (budget) as opposed to being recognized as changes in an asset (GAAP).

. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments

The County maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all County funds, except for certain of the trust and agency funds. In addition, cash, cash
equivalents and investments are separately held by other funds, including the General Employees' Pension Fund. At year-end, the carrying amount of the County's deposits
was $56,111,000 and the bank balance was $65,977,000. All of the bank balance was covered by federzl depository insurance or by collateral held by the County's
custodial bank in the County's name.

Statutes authorize the Counly to invest in obligations of the United States Treasury or Agencies, banker's acceptances, bank money market accounts, repurchase agreements,
and the Georgia Fund 1 (a local govemment investment pool). The General Employees' Pension Fund is also authorized to invest in corporate bonds and debentures which
are not in default as to principal and interest; corporate stocks, common or preferred; first loans on real estate where the loans are guaranteed by the Administrator of
Veterans Affairs or by the Federal Housing Authority of the United States; certificates of deposit in nationa banks and state banks insured by the FDIC; and any other
investments approved by the Pension Board.

The County's investments are categorized below to give an indication of the level of credit risk assumed by the County at year-end. Category 1 includes investments that are
insured or registered, or securities held by the County's agent (the County's custodial bank) in the County's name. Category 2 includes investments that are uninsured and
unregistered, with securities held by the counterparty's trust department or agent in the County's name. Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered with securities held
by the counterparty's trust department or agent but not in the County's name. The following amounts are in thousands of dollars:




U.S.Government securities
Certificates of deposit
Corporate stocks
Corpcrate bonds

Total Categorized Investments

Mutual funds

Investment in State of Georgia investment pools

Total Investments

5. Allowance For Uncollectible Receivables

Category

1 2 : 3 Total
$ 92,267 $ - $ - $ 92,267
122 - - 122
- 146,119 - - 146,119
782,066 - - 782,066
$1,020574 3 - 8 - 1,020,574
240,824
296,154
$ 1,557,552

Allowances for uncollectible receivables at December 31 are as folows (in thousands of dollars):

Governmental activities:
Taxes receivable

Accounts receivable

6. Due From Other Governments

$

$

837
22,507

23,344

Business-type activities:
Accounts receivable

Amounts due from other governments at December 31 are as follows (in thousands of dollars):

Governmental activities:
Georgia Emergency Management Agency
Georgia Department of Transportation
Georgia Department of Labor
Housing & Urban Development
US Department of Justice

Other

Total

$

$

811
1,064
335
943
506
683

4,342

Business-type activities:
Federal Aviation Administration
Georgia Department of Transportation
Other local governments
Total

Component Units:
Miscellaneous State Agencies

$ 12924
$ 180
104

416
$ 700

$ 1,754
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7. Capital Assets _ 43

Changes in capital assets are as follows (in thousands of dollars): Accumulated Accumulated
Depreciation Depreciation
and and Book
Balance . Balance Amortization Amortization Value
12/31/2002 Additions Deletions 12/31/2003 12/31/2002 Additions Deletions 12/31/2003 12/31/2003
Governmental activities
Not depreciated:
Land $ 144259 § 33494 § - $ 177,753 : $ 177,753
Construction in progress 39,567 25,910 - 65,477 65,477
Depreciated:
Land improvements 26,509 - - 26,509 $ 9,900 $ 583 $ - $ 10,483 16,026
Buildings 250,057 2,822 - 252,879 62,127 ' 5,410 - 67,537 185,342
Infrastructure 464,931 28,711 - 493,642 98,748 10,316 - 109,064 384,578
Other equipment 49,983 8,167 (5,586) 52,564 26,008 10,255 (5,586) 30,677 21,887
Totals $ 975306 $ 99,104 § 5,586) $1,068,824 $ 196,783 $ 26,564 $ (5,686) $ 217,761 $ 851,063
Business-type activities
Not depreciated:
Land $ 40334 § 286 $ - $ 40620 ' $ 40,620
Construction in progress 99,749 108,608 - 208,357 208,357
Depreciated:
Land improvements 43,113 13,515 (13) 56,615 $ 10,549 $ 1,783  § (13) $ 12,319 44,296
Buildings 11,733 - - 11,733 5,732 341 - 6,073 5,660
Plants , 141,508 18,356 - 159,864 52,435 2,970 - 55,405 104,459
Lines 543,911 46,932 - (1,852) 588,991 157,575 11,327 (1,852) 167,050 421,941
Water meters 42,629 5,472 (841) 47,260 13,978 2,996 841) 16,133 31,127
Vehicles and portable
equipment 125,669 15,600 (13,310) 127,959 74,058 16,703 (13,310) 77,451 50,508
Other equipment 17,282 3,336 (1,471) 19,147 7,689 2,952 (1.471) 9,170 9,977
Leaseholds 169,411 - ] - 169,411 13,614 3,477 - 17,091 152,320
Totals $1,235,339 $ 212105 $ (17487) $1,420957 $ 335630 $ 42549 $ (17,487)  $ 360,692  $1,069,265

Component units
Depreciated:

Other equipment $ 5470 $ 658 $ (1,223) § 4905 $ 3301  $ 676 § (1,223) $ 2,754 $ 2,151




Depreciation was charged to functions / programs of the primary government as follows (in thousands of dollars):

Governmental activities: Business-type activities
General government $ 5,452 Water and sewerage system $ 23,024
Public safety 3,584 Sanitation 2,015
Civil and criminel court system 3,096 DeKalb-Peachtree Airport 482
Planning 38 Vehicle maintenance 325
Public works 10,525 Vehicle replacement 16,703
Community development 35 $ 42549
Library 636
Parks and recreation 1,202
Health and welfare 1,042
Miscellaneous 954

$ 26,564
Construction in progress at December 31 is composed of the following (in thousands of dollars):

Project Expended Required

Authoriza- as of Future
tion 12/31/2003 Committed Financing

Governmental activities :
Parks and recreation $ 19,124 $ 788 $ 18,336 § -
Health centers 300 193 107 -
Art centers 3,041 133 2,908 -
Fire stations 1,361 650 711 -
Police stations 1,500 1,402 98 -
Justice center addition 36,649 36,592 57 -
Jail parking deck 1,926 68 1,858 -
Office building 18,233 11,150 7,083 -
Infrastructure 54,731 14,501 40,230 -

Totals $ 136,865 $ 65477 § 71,388 $ -

Business-type activities
Water and sewer lines $ 24178 $ 11,102 $ 13,074 $ -
Water plants 285,133 194,795 90,338 -
Sanitation facilities : 7,495 138 7,357 -
Airport facilities 3,044 2,322 722 -

Totals $ 319848 § 208357 § 111,491 § -




8. Long-Term Obligations 45

Changes in long-term obligations for the year are as follows (in thousands of dollars):

Balance Payments/ Balance Current Long-term
12/31/2002 Additions Retirements Refundings 12/31/2003 Portion Portion
Governmental activities :
Claims and judgments payable $ 11595 3 2,197 § 3,000 $ - % 10792 $% 7672 % 3,120
Compensated absences payable 27,120 909 - - 28,029 - 28,029
Capital leases 4,565 4,723 4,779 - 4,509 1,373 3,136
General obligation bonds payable 267,640 127,915 15,000 130,210 250,345 15,845 234,500
Building Authority revenue bonds payable - - 15,000 - - 15,000 580 14,420
Certificates of participation payable 9,270 25,000 - 9,270 25,000 475 24,525
-Unamortized premium on bonds payable - 5,953 534 6,419 - 6,419
Deferred loss on bond refunding - (5,353) (445) (4,908) - (4,908)
Totals $ 320,190 $ 177,344 $ 22,868 $ 139,480 $ 335,186 $ 25,945 $ 309,241
Business-tyoe activities
Landfill closure and postclosure cost $ 17288 $ 125 § - 3 - $ 17413 § - $ 17,413
Compensated absences payable 5,295 77 49 - 5,323 - 5,323
Contractual obligations payable 265 - 46 - 219 219 -
Capital leases 6,190 1,341 1,819 - 5,712 2,176 3,536
Revenue bonds payable 446,580 179,865 6,745 114,335 505,365 7,550 497,815
Unamortized premium on bonds payable - 8,140 140 - 8,000 - 8,000
Deferred loss on bond refunding - (9,475) (336) - (9,139) - (9,139)
Totals $ 475618 $ 180,073 § 8463 $§ 114,335 $§ 532803 § 9,945 § 522,948
Component Units

Compensated absences payable $ 1,150 § 206 $ - $ - 3 1,446  § - § 1,446
Contractual obligations payable 31 87 (58) - 60 6 54
$ 1,181 $ 383 $ (58) $ - $ 1,506 $ 6 $ 1,500

Governmental activities:

Claims and judgments payable typically have been liquidated in the other governmental funds and in the internal service funds. Compensated absences payable have
typically been liqudated in the General Fund, the Special Tax District-Designated Services Fund, the Special Tax District-Unincorporated Fund, other governmental
funds, and in the internal service funds. Capital leases have typically bezn liquidated in the General Fund, other governmental funds, and the internal service funds.

The following is a schedule by years of future minimum instaliment purchase payments on capital leases in the govemmental activities with the present value of the net
minimum payments as of December 31 (in thousands of dollars):




Year Payable

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008
Totals

Principal Interest Total
$ 1,373 § 134 3 1,507
1,199 83 1,282
1,163 46 1,209
714 15 729
60 - 60
$ 4509 § 2718 % 4,787

in July 2003, the County issued $53,295,000 of General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2003A. The proceeds of which were used to purchase direct obligations

of the United States Government for placement in an irrevocable trust to satisfy the principal and interest requirements of the Series 1992 General Obligation Refunding
Bonds maturing in the years 2004-2007 and 2010-2020 in the aggregate sum of $28,630,000 and the Series 1993 General Obligation Health Facilities Bonds maturing
in the years 2004-2020 in the aggregate sum of $24,170,000. This advance refunding was undertaken to reduce total debt service payments over the next 17 years by

$6,136,000, with an economic gain of $4,669,000.

In December 2003, the County issued $74,620,000 of General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2003B. The proceeds of which were used to purchase direct
obligations of the United States Government for placement in an irrevocable trust to satisfy the principal and interest requirements of the Series 1993 General
Obligation Refunding Bonds maturing in the years 2005-2020 in the aggregate principal amount of $77,410,000. This advance refunding was undertaken to reduce total

debt service payments over the next 17 years by $10,241,000, with a economic gain of $6,645,000.

For financial accounting and reperting purposes, all bonds refunded (a total of $139,280,000) are considered defeased and, along with the funds held in trust, are not
included in the accompanying financial statements.

The following is a summary of the County's outstanding general obligation bond issues at December 31 (in thousands of dollars):

Year
Issued

Purpose

1991
1991
1992
1993
1998
2001
2003
2003

Refunding issue
Jail

Refunding issue
Refunding issue
Jail

Parks
Refunding issue
Refunding issue

Totals

Interest Interast Issue Maturity Authorized

Rate (%) Dates Date Date and Issued Retired Outstanding
5.90 1-1 7-1 11/01/91 01/01/04 $ 5525 § 5025 § 500
6.25 11 7-1 12/01/91 01/01/20 88,000 85,810 2,190
6.00 -1 741 12/01/92 01/01/20 64,775 55,705 9,070
4.65 1-1 71 11/01/93 01/01/20 81,125 80,535 590
5.00 1-1 7-1 08/01/98 01/01/20 2,000 - 2,000
3.00-5.00 6-1 121 10/01/01 12/01/15 125,000 16,920 108,080
2.00-5.00 1-1 71 07/22/03 01/01/20 53,295 - 53,295
3.00-5.00 1-1 7-1 12/05/03 01/01/20 74,620 - 74,620
$ 494340 § 227,075 $ 250,345
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The following is a summary of general obligation bonds debt service requirements to maturity as of December 31 (in thousands of dollars):
Year Payable Principal Interest Total
2004 $ 15,845 § 9,133 § 24,978
2005 15,635 10,478 26,113
2006 15,985 9,789 25,774
2007 16,410 8,999 25,409
2008 17,810 8,227 26,037
2009-2013 86,720 29,183 115,903
2014-2018 62,495 10,724 73,219
2019-2020 19,445 949 20,394
Totals $ 250,345 § 87482 $ 337,827

The County is subject to the laws of the State of Georgia, which limit the amount of net bonded debt (exclusive of revenue bonds) the County may have outstanding to
10% of the assessed valuation of taxable property within the County. Al year-end, general obligation bonds outstanding, net of amounts available in the Debt Service
Funds, totaled $239,531,000. The statutory limit at that date was $2,150,600,000, providing a debt margin of $1,911,069,000.

In October 2003, the County entered into a building lease-purchase agreement with Association County Commissioners of Georgia Leasing Program to finance the
purchase and renovation of an office building and to renovate an existing courthouse. Certificates of Participation in the amount of $25,000,000 were issued in connection
with the lease purchase agreement. Prior to this agreement the County defeased the Series 1991 and Series 1994 Certificates of Participation that were then outstanding
using available resources. $1,580,000 of the Series 1991 and $7,690,000 of the Series 1994 were defeased. For financial accounting and reporting purposes,all
certificates defeased (a total of $3,270,000) are considered retired and, along with the funds held in trust, are not included in the accompanying financial statements. This
cash defeasance resuited in a current year accounting loss of $518,000, but provided an economic gain of $424,000.

The following is a summary of the County's outstanding Certificates of Participation at December 31 (in thousands of dollars):

Year Interest Interest Issue Maturity Authorized
Issued Purpose Rate (%) Dates Date Date and Issued Retired Outstanding
2003 Office building and courthouse 2.50-4.75 6-1 12-1 10/14/03 12/01/23 $ 25000 S - $ 25,000

The following is a summary of Certificates of Participation debt service requirements to maturity as of year end (in thousands of dollars):

Interest
Year Payable Rate (%) Principal Interest Total
2004 2.50 $ 475 % 1,006 $ 1,481
2005 2.25 485 994 1,479
2006 2.25 970 983 1,953
2007 2.5 995 961 1,956
2008 2.875 1,020 937 1,957
2009-2013 3.125-4.00 5,630 4,132 9,762
2014-2018 4.00-4.40 6,890 2,832 9,772
2019-2023 4.50-4.75 8,535 1,233 9,768
Totals $ 25000 $ 13,128 $ 38,128

In June 2003, the Building Authority issued $15,000,000 of DeKalb County Building Authority Revenue Bonds. The proceeds of which will be used to construct a juvenile
justice center.
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The following is a summary of the County's outstanding Building Authority revenue bond issues at December 31 (in thousands of dollars):

Year Interest Interest Issue Maturity Authorized
Issued Purpose Rate (%) Dales Date Date and Issued Retired Outstanding
2003  Juvenile Justice Center 2.0-5.0 6-1 12-1 07/01/03 12/01/20 $ 15000 $ - $ 15,000

The following is a summary of the County's governmental activities revenue bonds debt service requirements to maturity as of December 31 (in thousands of dollars):

Interest
Year Payable Rate (%) Principal Interest Total
2004 2.0 $ 580 $ 499 $ 1,079
2005 2.0 590 437 1,077
2006 2.0 605 475 1,080
2007 2.0 615 463 1,078
2008 2.0 630 451 1,081
2009-2013 2.5-3.0 3,370 2,022 5,392
2014-2018 3.0-3.7 3,910 1,488 5,398
2019-2020 3.75-5.0 4,700 694 5,394
Totals $ 15,000 § 6,579 § 21,579

Business-type activities:

DeKalb County has entered into a series of leasehold agreements with the City of Atlanta whereby the County would pay the City in equal monthly installments over 30
years for the use of a portion of the R. M. Clayton Water Pollution Control Plant. These lease payments are reflected as a capital lease obligation at the present value of
the aggregate payments due over the remaining life of the lease. The folowing is a scheduls by years of future minimum lease payments to the City of Atlanta for capital
leases with the present value of the net minimum lease payments (in thousands of dollars):

Year Ending December 31,

2004 $ 221
Less amount representing interest costs at interest rate of 9.52% 2
Present value of net minimum lease payments 219
Current portion 219
Long-term portion $ -

The following is a schedule by years of future minimum installment purchase payments on capital leases for vehicles in the business-type activities with the present valua
of the net minimum payments as of December 31 (in thousands of doltars):

Year Payable Princpal Interest Total
2004 .8 2176 $ 172 $ 2,348
2005 1,827 96 1,923
2006 1,034 41 1,075
2007 602 12 614
2008 73 1 74

Totals $ 5712 § 322§ 6,034
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In November, 2003 the County issued $179,865,000 principal amount of Water and Sewerage Revenue Bonds. $70,000,000 of the proceeds will be used to pay the
County's proportionate share of its obligations for the jointly finranced Nancy Creek Tunnel and Pump Station with the City of Atlanta, the construction of an office

building, and the renovation of a number of trunk sewers. The remaining monies were used to purchase direct obligations of the United Stales Government for placement
in an irrevocable trust to satisfy the principal and interest requirements of the Series 1993 Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of $114,335,000 maturing in the
years 2005-2023. For financial accounting and reporting purposes, all revenue bonds defeased (a total of $159,550,000) are considered refired and, along with the funds
held in trust, are not included in the accompanying financial statements. This advance refunding was undertaken to reduce total debt service paymenits over the next 20
years by $11,204,000, and provided an economic gain of $7,478,000.

The following is a summary of the County's outstanding business-type activities revenue bond issues as of December 31 (in thousands of dollars):

Interest Interest Issue Maturity Authorized Out- Call
Series Rate (%) Dates Date Date and Issued Retired standing Callable Premiums
1893 4.60 4-1 101 12/01/93 10/01/23 $ 125935 $ 124930 3 1,005 § -
1897 6.125-6.25 4-1 101 07/09/97 10/01/06 42,870 26,040 16,830 -
1999 4.20-5.00 4-1  10-1 05/01/99 10/01/28 96,345 - 96,345 92,955 0-1%
2000 4.375-5.625 4-1 10-1 11/01/00 10/01/35 214,525 3,205 211,320 195,600 0-1%
2003 4.0-5.0 4-1  10-1 11/18/03 10/01/35 179,865 - 179,865 145,875 None
Totals $ 659540 $ 154,175 $ 505365 $§ 434,430

The various bond indentures contain significant limitations anc restrictions on annual debt service requirements, maintenance of and flow of monies through various
restricted accounts, minimum amounts to be maintained in various sinking funds, and minimum revenue bond coverages. As of year-end, the County believes it was in

compliance with all such significant limitations and restrictions.

The following is a summary of the County's outstanding business-type activities revenue bonds debt service requirements to maturity as of year-end (in thousands of

dollars):
Year

Payable

2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009-2013
2014-2018
2019-2023
2024-2028
2029-2033
2034-2035
Totals

Principal Interest Total
$ 7,550 $ 23,950 $ 31,500
6,915 25,195 32,110
7,315 24,797 32,112
5,550 24,375 29,925
8,910 24,160 33,070
51,530 114,702 166,232
65,600 100,630 166,230
84,345 81,878 166,223
109,380 57,936 167,316
107,225 30,440 137,665
51,045 4,024 55,069
$ 505365 $ 512,087 $ 1,017,452




9. Employee Benefits

(A) Defined Benefits Pension Plan Description

(B)

The County provides pension benefits for substantially all of its full-time and permanent parttime employees through a single employer defired benefit plan (the

" "Plan"). The Plan is administered by the DeKalb County Pension Board (the "Board") compcsed of five voting members (the Chief Executive Officer of DeKalb County,

two members elected by County employees, one member selected by the DeKalb County Board of Commissioners, and one member appointed by the other voting
members of the Board) and two non-voting members (the County Director of Finance and the County Merit System Director). The Plan does not issue separate financial
statements. The County's payroll for employees covered by the Plan for the year was $275,335,000, as compared to a total County payroll of $292,218,000.

The Plan provides retirement benefits of 2.75% of average salary (basec on the highest consecutive 36 months of pay over the last ten years of employment) times
years of service with a maximum retirement benefit of 82.5% of average salary. Normal retirement, with at least 10 years of service, is at age 55 or older. Early
retirement (subject to reductions in benefits) is allowed at age 50 with 10 or more years of service. Employees with 30 years of service can retire at any age with no
reduction in benefits. An employee can retire at age 65 regardless of yezrs of service.

Termination benefits are as follows. Within the first three years of service, the participant's contributions will be returned without interest. After three but fewer than ten
years of service, the participant may either withdraw his contributions plus interest or leave his contributions in the Plan and receive a monthly benefit to commence at
age 65 equal to his accrued benefit as of the date of fermination. After ten years of service, the participant may either withdraw his contributions plus interest or leave
his contributions in the Flan and receive a monthly benefit to commence at his normal retirement date equal to his accrued benefit as of the date of termination. Such
terminating employee may elect to receive reduced banefits any time after he attains 50 years of age.

Retirement benefits are payable monthly for life (ten years guaranteed) with survivor options available subject to reduced monthly benefits. The Plan also provides
disability benefits. These benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by State statuts and by the DeKalb Pension Act. Any changes to the Plan benefits
must be approved by the DeKalb County Board of Commissioners. Confribution levels to the Plan are determined using the actuarial basis specified by statute. Current
contribution levels, as approved by the DeKalb County Board of Commissioners, are employee 0.5% and County 0.5% of employee earnings. The accrual basis of
accounting is used to report the activities of the Plan. Plan member contributions are recognized in the period in which the contributions are due. Benefits and refunds

are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the Plan. Assets are valued at fair value, based on quoted market prices, with actuarial valuations of

investments adjusted to market ata 5 year smoothed rate. As of year end, no investment in any one organization represented 5% or more of plan assets. Administrative
costs of the Pian are financed thrcugh investment eamings. As of year-end, Plan membership was composed of the following:

Ten year vested active employees covered by the Plan 2,416
Three year vested active employees covered by the Plan 2,047
Nonvested active employees covered by the Plan 1,653
Retirees currently receiving normal retirement benefits 1,763
Retirees currently receiving disability benefits 109
Beneficiaries of deceased retirees currently receiving benefits 194
Terminated employees entitled to benefits but not yet receiving them because of age 244

Total members 8,426

Actuarial assumptions

The actuarial accrued liadility was computed as part of an actuzrial valuation performed as of April 1, 2003. Significant actuarial assumptions used in the valuation
include: (a) rate of return on investment of present and future assets of 8.0% per year compcunded annually, (b) projected salary increases cf 3.5% for inflation and 0% to
4.3% for merit / seniority based on an age graduated scale, compounded annually, (c) no post retirement benefit increases were assumed.
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(C) Actuarially Determined Pension Plan Contribution Requirements and Contribution Made 51

The Plan's funding policy provides for actuarially determined contributions at rates that, for individual employees, are a level percentage of payroll. The contribution

rate for normal cost is cetermined using the entry age normat cost method. The required cantribution includes the normal cost less amortization of the assets in excess
of the actuarial accrued liability. Amortization is taken as a level percentage of payroll over 0.25 to 29 years for various bases. The significant actuarial assumptions
used to compute the actuarially determined contribution requirement are the same as those used to compute the actuarial accrued liability as described above. The total
contributions to the Plan for the year of $2,708,000 were made in accordance with actuarially determined requirements computed through an actuarial valuation
performed April 1, 2002. Employer contributions of $1,288,000 represent 100% of the employer annual required contribution. The net pension obligation of $0 was
determined in accordance with GASB Statement No. 27. The amortization period for the County's actuarial accrued surplus is open.

(D) Schedule of Contributions as a percentage of salary

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994
Employee 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50%
Employer 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% .5-3.25% 3.25% 10.00% 10.00%

(E) Unaudited Schedule of Funding Progress (in thousands of dollars where applicable):

Valuation Date

4-1-2003 4-1-2002 4-1-2001 4-1-2000 4-1-1999 4-1-1998

Actuarial value of plan asseis $ 1,122,066 $1,161,884 $ 1,002,973 $ 995071 §$ 922548 $ 861,814
Actuarial accrued liability $ 1,062,595 $ 978,606 $ 851,877 $ 790,994 $ 726,771 $ 593,931
Percentage funded 105.60% 118.73% 117.74% 125.80% 126.94% 145.10%
Assets in excess of actuarial accrued liability $ 59,471 $ 1832718 $ 151,006 $ 204,077 § 195,777 $ 267,883
Annual covered payroll $ 254259 § 249,746 $ 206419 $ 196590 $ 194410 $ 181,342
Assets in excess of actuarial accrued liability

as a % of annual covered payroll 23.39% 73.39% 73.20% 103.81% 100.70% 147.72%-

(F) Unaudited Schedule of Employer Contributions (in thousands of dcllars where applicable):
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
Annual required contribution / annual pension cost $ 1,288 § 1,302 $ 1,253 § 1140 § 1,070 $ 1,007
Annual employer contributions made $ 1,288 $ 1,302 $ 1,253  § 1,140 § 1,070 $ 1,007
Net pension obligation, end of year $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Percentage of annual employer contributions made to
annual required contributions 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

(G) Other Post Retirement Benefits

Group health benefits are available to all retirees and beneficiaries of retirees with the County paying up to 70% of the total cost and the retiree paying the remaining
amount.These benefits are provided by the DeKalb County Board of Commissioners each year and are not statutory, contractual, or required by other authority. The
total cost of retiree health benefits, $11,638,000 for the year, is recognized as an expense in the Internal Service Funds as claims are incurred. 1,631 retirees and

" beneficiaries of retirees were covered by County group insurance as of year-end.




10.

11.

12.

(H) Deferred Compensation Plan

The County offers its employees an optional deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The plan is available to all
County employees and permits them to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination,
retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency. All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all property and rights purchased with those amounts, and all
income attributable to those amounts, property, or rights are (until paid or made available to the participant or other beneficiary) solely the property and rights of a
Trust created by the County for the benefit of the participants and administered by third parties. The County has adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 32
which required the removal of plan assets and liabilities from the financial statements of the County.

Proprietary Funds
Contracts and agreements
The County has a shared interest in various water pollution control planis with the City of Aflanta, Gwinnett County, Henry County, and Fulten County. Each of these

agreements requires the County to pay a pro rata share of the plants' operating costs and additional capital improvements which may be made by the other equity
interest. During the year, the County incurred the following operating costs (no capital costs were incurred) (in thousands of dollars):

R. M. Clayton Plant - City of Atlanta $ 9,783
Big Creek Plant, John's Creek Plant,

Marsh Creek Plant - Fulton County 1,125
Jackson Creek Plant - Gwinnett County 418

Total $ 11,326

Fund Deficits

The Risk Management Fund (an internal service fund) ended the year with a net assets deficit of $1,627,000. Risk management charges will be increased in 2004 to
eliminate this deficit.

Risk Management

The County is exposed to verious risks of loss related to iorts; theft of, damage to, or destruction of assets; errors and omissions; law enforcement liability; injuries to
employees; assumed risks for employee benefits; damage to privaie parties; and natural disasters. By provision of the State Constitution, the County may be immune from
liability for most forms of bodily injury and property damage arising out of its operations, if such losses are not insured. It is the policy of the County to utilize immunity as a
legal defense against liability claims whenever the risk of loss is not insured and immunity may be asserted.

DeKalb County has a Risk Management Fund to accountfor and tc finance its purchase of insurance and coverage of uninsured risks of loss when immunity cannot be
asserted. Under this program, the Risk Management Fund finances two reserves: workers' compensation and incurred but unpaid claims under a self-funded employee
medical benefit program. The County retains the first $500,000 of expense for each occurence of workers' compensation injuries, and it retains the first $175,000 of medical
expense claims per year for each covered employee under the comprehensive medical insurance plan. Beyond these limits, the County purchasas specific excess insurance to
limit further loss. No claim has ever exceeded the excess limits of the workers' compensation or excess medical insurance policies. Reserves are established for the medical
insurance liabilities based on actuarial projection provided by the plan administrator (Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Georgia). Reserves for workers' compensation are
established in two manners: (1) an estimate of future expenses for known cleims and known treatment needs, and (2) a statistical projection of incurred but unreported claims,

based on recent historical experience of loss developmert in the County's claims.
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The County purchases commercial automobile liability insurance to cover its automobile, trucks, and other on-road vehicles. it also purchases liability coverage for its 53
helicopter fleet and for airport operaticns. Beyond the limits of the liability policies, the County asserts immunity, and has never had to pay a claim in excess of those policies.
Consequently, no reserve is established for these risk exposures.

Buildings and contents are insured through an "all risk" property damage insurance policy, and the County retains the first $100,000 of each loss, with no aggregate limits.
This retention level is funded by an annual appropriation of $300,000 which, historically, has proven adequate to cover all claims.

The changes in the liabilities for self-insurance for the last four years are as foliows (in thousands of dollars):

2003 2002 2001 2000

Workers' compensation:

Incurred claims, net of any changes $ 3,493 § 1,800 $ 259 § 4,533

Payments (2,887) (2,411) (2,722) (3,316)

Ending balance 5,279 4,673 5,284 5,411
Health and dental:

Incurred claims, net of any changes 46,552 39,828 38,420 34,189

Payments (45,461) (38,484) (38,215) (34,204)

Ending balance 5,013 3,922 2,578 2,373
Total liability for self insurance $ 10,292 $ 8,595 $ 7,862 $ 7,784

13. Interfund Balances and Activity
(A) Balances Due to/from Other Funds
Balances due to / from other funds at year end consist of the fcllowing (in thousands of dollars):

$ 3,114 Due tothe General Fund from other governmantal funds representing short-term loans.
126 Due to the General Fund from the General Employee's Pension fund representing a short-term loan.
1,219 Due to the Special Tax District Designated Services Fund from the Special Tax District Unincorporated Fund representing a short-term loan.
$ 4,459 Total

(B) Transfers to / from Other Funds
Transfers to / from other funds for the year consist of the following:

$ 812 Transfer from General Fund to other governmental funds to match federal and state grants.
800 Transfer from General Fund to debt service fund.
26,434 Transfer from General Fund to other governmental funcs for capital projects.
80 Transfer from General Fund to to fund the implementation of the Stormwater Utility Fund.
8,537 Transfer from other governmental funds to General Fund to fund programs.
223 Transfer from other governmental funds of unspent grant and projects monies to General Fund.
12 Transfer from other governmental funds of unspent projects monies to Special Tax district Designated Services Fund.
1,780 Transfer from Special Tax District Designated Services Fund to other govemmental funds to match federal and state grants.




598 Transfer from Special Tax District Unincorpcrated Fund fo fund an implementation study for the Stormwater Utility Fund.
76,711 Transfer from Special Tax District Unincorpcrated Fund to Special Tax District Designated Services Fund to fund operations.
3,910 Transfers between other governmental funds to supplement other funds sources.
13 Transfer from Sanitation Fund to other governmetnal funds for grant match.
: 55 Transfer from DeKalb-Peachtree Airport Fund to General Fund to match a federal grant.
$ 119,965

14. Commitments And Contingencies

15.

The County Board of Commissioners voted during fiscal year 2003 to approve giving 95% of the hotel / motel tax received by the County to the DeKalb County Convention and
Visitors Bureau and 5% to the DeKalb Council for the Arts. During the year, the County paid $1,814,000 and $95,000 respectively, on these agreements, with $199,000
remaining as a payable.

Litigation - The County is defendant in various legal actions in the nature of claims for alleged damages 1o persons and property, civil rights violations, zoning matters, and
other similar types of actions arising in the course of normal County operations. In the opinion of the County's management and legal counsel there are no suits pending or
unasserted claims that would have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the County.

Grant Contingencies - The County has received federal and state grants for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit by the grantor agencies. Any disallowed

claims, including amounts aready collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor
cannot be determined at this time although the County's managemsnt expects such amounts, if any, will not be significant.

Budget Information

The County exceded the legal level of budgeted expenditures in the following departments (in thousands of dollars):

Registrar and elections $ (19)
Juvenile Court 79)
Public works administretion (18)
County jail fund (286)
Parks and recreation (DATAE) $ 9)

These overages were caused by unexpected expenditures in these funds during 2003. The budget for these departments in 2004 is expected to be sufficient to cover
expenditures.

As mandated by Georgia law, the County maintains a project-length balanced budget for each capital projects fund. The following is a summary of each of these funds
project-length budgets (in thousands of dollars):
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Project-length revenues:
Budget
Actual

Project-length expenditures:
Budget
Actual

Project-length revenues:
Budget
Actual

Project-length expenditures:
Budget
Actual

16. Fund Balance Reserves

HOST

Reserved fund balances in the various funds are as follows (in thousands of dollars):

Reserved for encumbrances
Reserved for inventories
Total reserved

1987 Health Community 2001
Parks Jail Facilities COPS Morgue -~ Capital Greenspace Parks
Bonds Bonds Bonds Bonds Project .__Projects Program Bonds
$ 385 $ 3,291 $ 14544 $§ 34644 $ 318 $ 145270 $ 6,291 $ 133,807
387 3,318 14,546 34,696 318 142,528 6,273 134,386
385 3,291 14,544 34,644 318 145,270 6,291 133,807
233 1,108 14,360 13,599 308 114,136 2,382 48,914
Building
Capital Authority
Improvement Juvenile
Projects Court Project Total
$ 90,529 $ 15,000 $ 444,079
72,810 15,154 424,416
90,529 15,000 444,079
46,160 6,207 247,407
Special Tax
District - Special Tax 2001 Other Total
Designated District - Parks Governmental Governmental
General Services Unincorporated Bonds Funds Funds
S 5673 $ 994 3 57 % 6,136 § 11,259 $ 24,119
131 - - - $ - 131
S 5804 § 994 $ 57 % 6,136  § 11,259 $§ 24,250
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DEKALB COUNTY, GEORGIA

- NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
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ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Taxes receivable (net)
Accounts receivable (net)
Due from other governments

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities:
Accounts and contracts payatle
Othér accrued liabilities
Advance payments and deposits
Due to other governments
Due to other funds
Deferred revenue
Total liabilities
Fund balances:
Reserved
Unreserved
Total fund balances

Total liabilties and fund balances

DeKalb County, Georgia

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Cormbining Balance Shest

December 31, 2003
(in thousands of dollars)

Spegcial - Debt Capital Total Nonmajor
Reverue Service Project Governmental

Funds Funds Funds Funds

17,487 11,212 83,650 $ 112,349

5,697 744 - 6,341

1,066 - - 1,066

2,479 - 1,863 4,342

26,629 11,956 85,513 124,098

1,063 - 1,745 2,808

1,404 - - 1,404

972 - - 972

868 - - 868

3,114 - - 3,114

986 456 11 1,453

8,407 456 1,756 10,619

2,303 - 8,956 11,259

15,918 11,500 74,801 102,220

18,222 11,500 83,757 113,479

26,629 11,956 85,513 $ 124,098
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DeKalb County, Georgia
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Combining Statement of Revanues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003
(in thousands of dollars)

Special Debt Capital Total Nonmajor
Revenue Service Project Governmental
Funds Furds Funds Funds
REVENUES
Taxes $ 64,309 $ 23,972 $ - $ 88,281
Licenses and permits 8,484 - - 8,484
Use of money and property 1,574 183 587 2,344
Intergovernmental 27,649 - 1,308 28,957
Fines and forfeitures 909 - - 909
Charges “or services 17,316 - . - 17,316
Miscellaneous ’ 1,484 2,070 93 3,647
Total revenues 121,725 26,225 1,988 149,938
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 7,259 - ) 7,259
Public safety 53,437 - - 53,437
Civil and criminal court system 2,996 - - 2,996
Public works 14,567 - - 14,567
Community development 9,443 - - 9,443
Parks and recreation 1,725 - - 1,725
Health and welfare 23,521 - - 23,521
Miscellaneous 1,338 - - 1,338
Debt senvice 1,290 28,495 2,114 31,899
Cash defeasance of bonds - - 9,788 9,788
Capital outlay:
General government - - 7,624 7,624
Public safety - - 481 481
Civil and criminal court system - - 24,910 24,910
Public works - . - 14,706 14,706
Parks and recreation - - 1,929 1,929
Health and welfare - - 53 53
Othe- - - 32 32
Total expenditures 115,576 28,495 61,637 205,708
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 6,149 (2,270) (59,649) (55,770)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds of bond issuance - ‘27,915 40,000 167,915
Premium on bond issuance - 6,509 444 6,953
Payments to escrow agents - (135,562) - (135,562)
Bond issuance expense - (868) (548) (1,416)
Contractual purchase obligations - - 1,365 1,365
Transfersin 2,794 800 30,138 33,732
Transfers out (10,570) - (2,112) (12,682)
Total other financing sources (uses) (7,776) (1,206) 69,287 60,305
Net change in fund balance (1,627) (3,476) 9,638 4,535
Fund balance - beginning 19,849 14,976 74,119 108,944
Fund balance - ending $ 18,222 $ 11,500 $ 83,757 $ 113,479
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DeKalb County, Georgia
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

The Special Revenue Funds are used o account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than irusts or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to
expenditure for specified purposes.
The following Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds are used by the Gounty:

Development Fund - to account for operations of the County's development department, whose financing is provided by licenss and permit fees.

Fire Fund - to account for operations of the County's fire department whose financing is provided by a specific annual property tax levy. Such property taxes are
used to provide fire protection for all residents of the County not protected by municipal fire departments.

Hospital Fund - to account for contractual payments made by the County to the Fulton DeKalb Hospital Authority whose financing is provided by a specific annual
property tax levy.

Child Support Incentive Fund - to account for monies collected from the State to be used by the District Attorney for programs relating to child support.

PEG Support Fund - to account for monies collected from cable companies to provide infrastructure for government access channets.

County Jail Fund - to account for monies collected as a result of a 10% penalty on certain court cases, which are used for the construction, operation, and staffing of
County detention facilities.

Hotel/Motel Tax Fund - to account for taxes collected by hctels and motels within the County which are used for the promotion of tourism and convention trade within
the County.

Grant-in-Aid Fund - to account for operations of various grant-in-aid programs. Financing is provided by contributions from various governmental agencies. Such
contributions are used only to finance expenditures permitted by the various grant-in-aid contracts and agreements.

LLEBG #5 Grant Fund - to account for local law enforcement block grant #5 monies which are used to support law enforcement in the County.

LLEBG #6 Grant Fund - to account for local law enforcement block grant #6 monies which are used to support law enforcement in the County.

Victim Assistance Fund - to account for fines assassed in State and Superior Courts in DeKalb County which are used for victim assistance programs.

Recreation Fund - to account for the operations of various recreational activities provided by the County whose financing is through user fees.

Law Enforcement Confiscated Monies Fund - to account for monies confiscated under Georgia law by DeKalb law enforcement officers related to controlled
substances offenses which are used to defray the cost of complex investigations and fo purchase equipment relating to said investigations.

Juvenile Services Fund - to account for monies collected under Georgia law for probaticnal services to juvenile offenders which are used for providing
treatment to juvenile offenders.

Emergency Telephone System Fund - to account for monies collected under Georgia law by the telephone company on behalf of DeKalb County which are
used for providing emergency 911 services to residents of the County.

Drug Abuse Treatment and Education Fund - to account for monies collected under Georgia law related to additional penalties on contralled substances offenses
which are used for drug abuse treatment and education programs relating to controlled substances and marijuana.

Street Lights Fund - to account for street light assessments on County residents and businesses which are used for providing street light services for the
County's citizers.

Speed Humps Fund - to account for speed hump assessments on County residents which are used for providing speed hump services for the County's citizens.

LLEBG #7 Grant Fund - to account for local law enforcement block grant #7 monies which are used to support law enforcement in the County.

LLEBG #8 Grant Fund - to account for local law enforcement block grant #8 monies which are used to support law enforcement in the County.

Law Library - to account for fees received from State and Superior Courts and used to finance the Law Library's operation and purchase of reference materials.

Alternative Dispute Resolution - to account for fees received from State, Magistrate, Probate, and Superior Courts and used to fund dispute resolution matters.
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ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Taxes receivable (net)
Accounts receivable (net)
Due from other govermments

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabifities:
Accounts and contracts payable
Other accrued liabllities
Advance payments and deposits
Due to other funds
Due to other govémments
Deferred revenue
Total liabilities
Fund balances;
Reserved
Unreserved
Total fund balances
Total liabilities and fund balances

Development

DeKalb County, Georgia
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
Combining Balance Sheet
December 31, 2003

(in thousands of dollars)

2,3%

Victim

Assistance

553

553

613

180

30

793

30

20
503

523

Child
Support PEG County
Fire Hospital fncentive Support Jai

- $ - $ 5 8 1,808
3,783 1,664 - -
3,783 1,664 5 1!808
178 - - -
944 - - -
1,857 1,136 - -
575 324 - -
3,554 1,460 . R
379 - - 179
{150) 204 5 1,629
229 204 5 1,808

3,783 $ 1,664 $ 5 $ 1,808 $

(continued)




Dekalb County, Georgia
Nonmajar Special Revenue Funds
Combining Balance Sheet
Decémber 31, 2003

(in tousands of doltars)

(continued)
Total
Law Nonmajor
Enforcement Emergency Drug Abuse . Altemnative Special
Confiscatec Juvenile Telephone Treatment Street Speed LLEBG #7 LLEBG #8 Law Dispute Revenue
Monies Services System & Education Lights Humps Grant Grant Library Resolution Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,017 $ 36 $ 6,752 $ 36 $ 113 225 8 177 $ 503 $ 170 $ 1,079 $ 17,487
Taxes receivable (net) - - - - - - - - - - 5,597
Accounts receivable (net) - - 850 - 165 6 - - 7 48 1,066
Due from other governments - - - - - - - - - - 2,479
Total assets 3,017 36 7,60=2= 36 268 231 177 & 177 1,127 26,629
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabifities:
Accounts and contracts payable 21 - - 16 - - - - - - 1,063
Other accrued liabilities - - - - 2 - - - - . 1,404
Advance payments and deposits 972 - - - - - - - - - 972
Due to other funds - - - - - - - - - - 3,114
Due to other govemments - - - - - - - - 9 510 868
Deferred revenue . - - - - - - - - - - 986
Total fiabilities 1,183 - . - 16 2 - - - 9 510 8,407
Fund balances:
Reserved ) 879 - - - - - - - - - 2,303
Unreserved 985 36 7,602 20 206 231_ 177 503 168 617 15,919
Total fund balances 1,84 36 7,602 20 266 231 177 503 168 617 18,222

Total fiabilities and fund balances $ 3,017 $ 36 $ 7602 $ 3% $ 268 $ 231 $ 177 $ 503 $ 177 $ 1127 s 26,629
— =41 ==




REVENUES

Taxes

Licenses and permits

Use of money and property
Intergovernmental

Fines and forfeitures
Charges for services
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General govemment
Public safety
Civil and criminal court system
Public works
Community development
Parks and recreation
Health and welfare
Miscellaneous

Debt service
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in

Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance
Fund balance -~ beginning

Fund balance - ending

DeKalb County, Georgia

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

For the Yezr Ended December 31, 2003
(in thousands of dollars)

Support PEG County Hotel \ LLEBG #5 LLEBG #6 Victim
Developmernt Fire Hcspital Incentive Support Jail Motel Tax Grant-in-Aid Grant Grant Assistance
$ - % 41948 $ 20,407 -3 . N $ 1954 § -8 $ -5 N
8,484 - - - - - - - - .
44 - - - 21 - - 1,370 4 -
2,106 1,058 - - 111 - 22,714 - 280
. - - - - - - - - - 848
- 75 - - - 1,727 - - - -
14 56 - - 721 - - 7 - -
8,542 44,185 21,465 - 742 1,838 1,954 24,091 4 1,128
- - - 1 149 - 2,101 5,008 - -
- 43,640 - - - - - 6,919 128 -
- - - - - - - 2,202 . 205 161
11,331 - - - - - - 32 - - -
- - - - - - - 9,443 - -
- - - - - - - 408 - 2 -
- - 21,588 B - - - 1,871 - - -
- - - - - - - 568 101 - -
11,331 43,640 21,588 1 149 - 2,101 26,451 101 3% 161
(2,819) 545 (123) 1) 593 1,838 (147) (2,360) (101) (352) 967
- 21 - - - - - 2,688 N - -
- (1,208) - (18) (500) (1,831) - (176) - - (873)
- (1,187) - (18) (500) {1,831) - 2,512 - - (873)
(2,819) (642) (123) (19) 93 7 (147) 152 (101) (352) 94
4,395 871 327 24 1,715 - 147 1,855 137 392 429
1,546 $ 229 $ 204 5 $ 1,808 7 $ - $ 2,007 36 $ 4) 3 523

(continued)




REVENUES

Taxes

Licenses and permits

Use of money and property
Intergovemmental

Fines and forfeitures
Charges for services
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current:
General government
Public safety
Civil and criminal court system
Public works
Community development
Parks and recreation
Health and welfare
Miscellaneous

Debt service
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over {(under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in

Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance - beginning
Fund balance - ending

Recreation

DekKalb County, Georgia
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
Combining Statement of Revenuss, Expenditures, ar;d Changes in Fund Balarce

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003
(in thousands of dollars)

LLEBG #7
Grant

Total
Nonmajor
Special
Revenue
Funds

1,23

176

64,309
8,484
1,574

27,649

909

17,316

1.484

1,241

121,725

310
231

7,259
53,437
2,996
14,567
9,443
1,725
23,521
1,338
1,290

1,24

541

115,576

()

176

(531)

6,149

32

2,794
(10,570)

32

(7.776)

&)
418

176

(499)
676

(1,627)
19,849

363

(continued)
Law
Enforcement Emergency Drug Abuse
Caonfiscated Juwenile Telephone Treatment Street Sp2ed
Monies Services System & Education Lights Humps
$ - $ - $ - 8 - $ -
32 - 83 1 1
927 - - - -
- - - 61 -
- 72 10,918 - 3,113
959 72 11,001 62 3,114
1,295 - 1,146 - -
156 41 - - -
. - - - 3,143
- - - 62 -
- - - 73 -
- - 1,280 - -
1,451 41 2,435 135 3,143
(492) 31 8,566 (73) 29)
- - - 3 .
(131) - (5,833) - ) N
(131) - (5,833) 3 R
(623) 31 2,733 (70} (29)
2,457 5 ' 4,869 90 295
$ 1,834 3 36 $ 7,602 $ 20 $ 256 $ 231

177

18,222




Revenues:
Property taxes
Sales taxes
Licenses and permits
Use of money and property
intergovernmental
Charges for services
Miscellaneous
Total revenues
Expenditures:
Current:
Public safety - fire and rescue services
Public works - development
Health and welfare - hospital
Miscellaneous
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
sources over expenditures and oher uses
Fund balance, beginning of year
Fund balance, end of year

DeKelb County, Georgia
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget anc Actuat

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003
Non-GAAP Budget Basis {in thousands of dollars)

65

Explanation of differences between budget and GAAP:
Deficiency of revenues and othersources over expenditures

and other uses - budget basis
Differences - budget to GAAP:
Due to revenues:
Accrued receivables 12-31-2002
Accrued receivables 12-31-2003
Deferred revenues 12-31-2002
Deferred revenues 12-34-2003
Due to expenditures:
Accrued payables 12-31-2002
Accrued payables 12-31-2003
Encumbrances 12-31-2002
Encumbrances 12-31-2003
Net change in fund balance - GAAP basis

{continued)

Development Fund Fire Fund Hospiial Fund
Actual Variance with Actual Variance with Actual Variance with
Original and Amounts Final Budget Original Final Amounis Final Budget Original Final Amounts Final Budget
Final Budgeted {Budgetary Over Budgeted Budgeted {Budgetary Over Budgeted Budgeted (Budgetary Over
Amounts Basis) (Under) Amounts Amounts Basis (Under) Amounts Amounts Basis) {Under)
$ - $ - $ - 5 28,397 $ 29478 $ 27,295 $ (2,181) $ 14,359 $ 14,655 $ 13,682 $ (973)
- - - 14,750 14,750 14,881 131 5,775 5,775 6,845 1,070
10,025 8,484 (1,541) - - - - - - - -
62 47 {15) 1 1 - 1) - - - -
- - - 3,234 2,374 2,108 (268) 1,470 1,174 1,068 {116)
- - - 75 75 75 - - - - -
2 ‘4 12 70 70 57 (13) - - - -
10,089 8,545 (1.544) 46,527 48,746 44,414 (2,332) 21,604 21,604 21,585 (19)
- - - 46,299 48,392 43,617 (2,775) - - - -
14,267 11,214 (3,053) B - - - - - - -
. - . - R - - 21,643 21,643 21,587 (56)
14,267 11,214 (3,053) 46,298 46,392 43,617 . (2,775) 21,643 21,643 21,587 (56)
(4,178) (2,669) 1,509 228 354 737 443 (39) {39) 2) 37
- - - - - 21 21 - - - -
- - - {1,083) (1,209 {1,2)9) - - - - -
(4,178) (2,669) 1,509 (855) (855) (391) 464 (39) (39) 2 37
4,178 4,178 - 855 855 855 - 39 39 39 -
$ - 1,509 $ 1,508 $ - $ - 454 $ 464 $ - $ - 37 $ 37
(2,6€9) {391) {2)
) (1,101) (593)
3 905 491
- 543 305
. (575) (324)
146 N7 -
(741) (944) R
(357} 375) .
775 3719 .
$ {2,849 ' $ 642 $ 123



Revenues:
Use of money and property
Intergovernmentat
Charges for services
Miscellaneous
Total revenues
Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Civil and criminal court system - district attorney
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
sources over expenditures and otheruses
over expenditures and other uses
Fund balance, beginning of year
Fund balance, end of year

Explanation of differences between budget and GAAP:

DeKalb County, Georgia

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003
Non-GAAP Budget Basis (in thousands of dollars)

Deficiency of revenues and other sources over expenditures

and other uses - budget basis
Differences - budget to GAAP:
Due to revenues:
Accrued receivables 12-31-2002
Accrued receivables 12-31-2003
Due to encumbrances:
Encumbrances 12-31-2002
Encumbrances 12-31-2003
Net change in fund balance - GAAP basis

(continued)
Child Support Incentive Fund PEG Sugport Fund County Jail Fund
Actual Variance with Actual Variance with Actual Variance with
Original and Amounts Final Budget Original Final Amounts Final Budget Original and Amounts Final Budget
Final Budgeted (Budgetary Over Budgeted Budgeted (Budgetary Over Final Budgeted (Budgetary Over
Amounts Basis) (Under) Amounts Amounts Basis) {Under) Amounts Basis) (Under)}
$ - $ - $ - $ - -8 22 $ 22 H - - $ -
- - - - - - - 75 111 36
- - - - - - - 1,470 1,727 257
- - - 670 770 720 (50) - - -
- - - 670 770 742 {28) 1,545 1,838 293
- - - 1,800 1,800 145 (1,655) - - -
23 1 (22) - - - - - - -
23 1 {22} 1,800 1,800 145 {1,655) - - -
(23) 1N 22 (1,130) (1,030) 597 1,627 1,545 1,838 293
- (18) (18 (400) (500) (500) - (1,545) (1,831) (286)
(23) (19) 4 ¢ ,536) (1,530) 97 1,627 - 7 7
23 23 - 1,630 1,630 1,530 - - - -
$ - 4 $ 4 $ - - 1,627 $ 1,627 $ - 7 $ 7
(19) 97 7
- @ -
- 2 -
- (183) -
— 179 -
$ {19) $ 93 7

(continued)
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DeKalb County, Georgia

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

Revenues:
Excise taxes
Use of money and property
Intergovemmental
Miscellaneous
Total revenues
Expenditures:
Current:
General government:
Chief Executive Officer
DeKalb PIC
Oter
Total general government

Publicsafety:
Police
Fite and rescue services
Total public safety
Civil and criminal court system:
Sheriff
Juwvenile court
Superior court
State court
Sdlicitor
District attomey
Magistrate court
Totat civil and criminal court system
Publicworks - development
Community development
Parks and recreation
Heatth and weifare
Miscelaneous
Tetal expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over experditures
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers v
Transfers out
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
sources over expenditures and other uses
over expenditures and other uses
Fund balance, beginning of year
Fund balance, end of year

Explanation of differences between budget and GAAP:

Deficiencyof revenues and other sources overexpenditures

and other uses - budget basis
Differences - budget to GAAP:
Due torevenues:
Accrued recelvables 12-31-2002
Accrued receivables 12-31-2003
Due toexpenditures:
Accrued payables 12-31-2002
Accrued payables 12-31-2003
Net change in fund balance - GAAP basis

of

3 i and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the YearEnded December 31, 2003
Non-GAAP Budgzt Basis (in thousands of dollars)
{continued)

Hot:! \ Motel Tax Fund

Grant-in-Aid Fund

(continued)

Actual Variance with Actual Variance with
Criginal and Amounts Final Budget Original Final Amounts Final Budget
Firal Budgeted {Budgetary Over Yy Over
Amounts Basis) {Under) Amounts Amounts Basis) {Under)
2050 $ 1952 $ (98) $ - $ - $ -8 -
- - - 95 1,370 1,370 -
- - - 56,344 79,240 284897 (50,743)
- - - (71 (70) 7 77
2,050 1,952 (98) 56,368 80,540 29,874 (50,666)
- - - 2 2 - )
- - - 4,557 8,478 5,003 (3.475)
2,207 1910 @97) - - - -
2207 1,910 (297) 4,559 8,480 5.003 (3.477)
- - - 12,687 14,831 6,906 (7,925)
- - - 3 1,034 - (1.034)
- - - 12,690 15,865 6,906 (8,959)
- - - 605 615 341 (274)
- - - 1,207 1,615 969 (646)
- - - 52 706 79 (627)
- - - 1 1 1 -
- - - 213 398 192 (206)
- - - 197 404 201 (203)
- - - 458 488 3714 {in
- - - 2,733 4227 2,154 2,073)
- - - 5,185 5218 32 {5,186)
- - - 20,598 35,118 9,436 (25,682)
- - - 381 1,173 408 {765)
. - - 2,328 2,574 1.871 {703)
- - - 2,907 3,585 565 (3,020)
2207 1,910 (297) 51,382 76240 26375 _ (49,865)
(157) 42 199 4,986 4,300 3,499 (801)
- - - 2,005 2,730 2,688 {42)
- - - (772) (811) {176) 635
(157) 42 199 6,218 6,219 6,011 (208)
157 157 - (6219 ___(e219 _ @219 _____ -
- 199 $ 199 $ - $ - (08 $ (208)
42 6,011
(147) (8.262)
150 2479
157 180
349, (266
147 3w




DeKalb County, Gecrgia
Nonmajor Special Revente Funds
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended Decemter 31, 2003
Non-GAAP Budget Basis (in thousands of dollars)

(continued)
Local Law Enforcement Block Grant #5 Fund Local Law Enforcement Block Grant #6 Fund Victim Assistance Fund
Actuel Variance with Actual Variance with Actual Variance with
Original Final Amourts Final Budget Original Final Amounts Final Budget Original and Amounts Final Budget
Budgeted Budgeted (Budgetary Over Budgeted Budgeted {Budgetary Over Final Budgeted (Budgetary Over
Amounts Amounts Basis) {Under) Amounts Amounts Basis) {Under) Amounts Basis) (Under)
Revenues: '
Use of money and property $ - $ . $ - $ - $ - $ 4 $ 4 $ - $ - $ - $ -
Intergovernmental - - - - - - - - 100 280 180
Fines and forfeitures - - - - - - - - 750 848 98
Total revenues - - - - - 4 4 - 850 1,128 278
Expenditures:
Current:
Public safety - police 363 328 327 1) 138 144 128 (16) - - -
Civil and criminal court system:
Sheriff - - - - 7 7 7 - - - -
Juvenile court - - - - 125 128 125 - - - -
State court - - - . - 56 56 56 - - - -
Solicitor state court - - - - 17 17 17 - - - -
District attorney - - - - - - - - 406 181 (225)
Total civil and eriminal court system - - - - 205 205 205 - 406 181 (225)
Parks and recreation - - - - 47 47 23 (24) - - -
Miscellaneous - - - - 2 - - - - - -
Totai expenditures 363 328 327 [O) 392 396 356 {40) 406 181 (225)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures (363) {328y (327) 1 (392) (392] (352) 40 444 947 503
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out - (35} - 35 - - - - (873) (873) -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
sources over expenditures and other uses
over expenditures and other uses (363) {363} 327) 36 (392) (392) (352) 40 (428) 74 503
Fund balance, beginning of year 363 363 363 - 392 392 392 - 429 423 -
Fund balance, end of year $ - $ - 36 $ 36 $ - $ - 40 $ 40 § - 503 $ 503
Explanation of differences between budgetand GAAP:
Deficiency of revenues and other sources over expenditures
and other uses - budget basis 327) (352) 74
Differences - budget to GAAP:
Due to expenditures:
Accrued payables 12-31-2002 226 - -
Encumbrances 12-31-2003 - - 20
Net change in fund balance - GAAP besis $ (01) $ 352 $ 94

(continued)




DeKalb County, Georgia
Nonnajor Special Revenue Funds
Schedule of Revenues, Expendiures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003
Non-GAAP Eudget Basis (in thousands of dallars)

{(continued)
Recreation Fund Local Law Enforcement Confiscatsd Monies Fund Juvenile Services Fund
Actual Variance with Actual Variance with Actual Variance with
Original and Amounts Final Budget Original Finel Amounts Finat Budget Original and Amounts Final Budget
Final Budgeted (Budgetary Over Budgeted Budgeted {Budgetary Over Finai Budgeted  (Budgetary Over
Amounts Basis) (Under) Amounts Amounts Bzsis) (Under) Amounts Basis) (Under)
Revenues:
Use of money and property $ (28) $ [} $ 34 $ - $ - $ 33 $ 33 $ - $ - $ -
Intergovernmental - - - - 927 927 - - - -
Charges for services 1,409 1,235 (174) - - - - 47 72 25
Total revenues 1,381 1,241 {140) - 927 960 33 47 72 25
Expenditures:
Current:
Public safety - police - - - 1,303 2,166 1,385 771) - - -
Civil and criminal court system:
Sheriff . N - 140 140 25 (115) - . -
Juvenile court - - - - - - - 52 41 (11)
District attomney - - - 393 429 212 217)
Total civil ard criminal courtsystem - - - 533 369 237 (332) 52 41 (11)
Parks and recreation 1.791 1,345 (446) - - - - - - -
Total expenditures 1,791 1,345 (446) 1,836 2,735 1,632 (1,103) 52 41 at
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures {410) {104) 306 (1,838) (1,308) {672) 1,136 5) 31 36
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out - - - 17 (145) (131) 14 - - -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
sources over expenditurss and other uses
over expenditures and oher uses {410) (104) 306 (1,953) (1,953) (803) 1,150 ®) 31 36
Fund balance, beginning of year 410 410 - 1,953 1,953 1,953 - 5 5 -
Fund bafance, end of year $ - 306 § 306 $ - $ - 1,150 $ 1,150 $ - 36 $ 36
Explanation of differences between budget and GAAP:
Deficiency of revenues and other sources over expenditures
and other uses - bucget basis (104) (803) 31
Differences - budget to GAAP:
Due to revenues:
Accrued receivables 12-31-2002 - {5) -
Accrued receivables 12-31-2003 - 5 -
Due to expenditures:
Accrued payables 12-31-2002 12 - -
Accrued payables 12-31-2003 {14) {200) -
Due to encumbrances:
Encumbrances $2-31-2002 . (18) (499) -
Encumbrances 12-31-2003 71 879 -
Net change in fund balance - GAAP basis $ (53) $ 623 $ 31

(continued)
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Revenues:
Use of money and property
Fines and forfeitures
Charges for services
Total revenues
Expenditures:
Current:
Public safety
Public works - roads and drainage
Parks and recreaticn
Health and welfare
Debt service
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of reverues
aver expenditures
Other financing sources (usas):
Transfers in
Transfers out
Excess (deficiency) of reverues and other

sources over expenditures and other uses

over expenditures and other uses
Fund balance, beginning of year
Fund balance, end of year

DzKalb County, Georgia

Nonmgzjor Special Revenue Funds

Schedule of Reverues, Expenditues, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

for the Year Ended December 31, 2003

Non-GAAP Budget Basis (in thousands of dofars)

Explanation of differences between budget and GAAP:

Deficiency of revenues and other sources over expenditures

and other uses - budget basis
Differences - budget to SAAP:
Due to revenues:
Accrued receivables 12-31-2002
Accrued receivables 12-31-2003
Due to expenditures:
Accrued payables 12-31-2002
Accrued payabies 12-31-2003
Encumbrances 12-31-2003

Net change in fund balance - GAAP basis

(continued)
Emergency Telephons System Fund Drug Abuse Treatment & Education Fund Street Lights Fund
Actual Variance with Actual Variance with Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget Original and Amounts Final Budget Original and Amounts Finat Budget
Budgeted Budgeted (Budgetary Over Final Budgeted (Budgetary Over Final Budgeted (Budgetary Over
Amounts Anounts Basis) {Under) Amounts Basis) (Under) Amounts Basis) {Under)
60 $ 60 s 82 3 22 $ 1 $ 1 $ - $ 2 $ 1 $ )
- - - - 70 61 ©) - - -
9,994 9,994 10,242 248 - - - 3,010 3,099 89
10,054 10,054 10.324 270 71 62 {9) 3,012 3,100 88
8,393 7,393 1,237 (7,156) - - - - - -
R . - . - . - 3,168 3,143 (25)
- - - - 53 62 9 - - -
. - = - 108 73 (35) - - -
1,407 1,407 1,290 17 - - - - - .
9,800 8,800 2,527 (7,273) 161 135 (26) 3,168 3,143 (25)
254 1,254 7,787 7,643 (90) 73) 17 (156) (43) 113
R - - - - 3 3 - - -
(4,943) {5,943) (5,833) (890) - - - - - -
(4,689) (4,689) 1,964 6,653 (90) (70} 20 (156) (43) 113
4,689 4,689 4,689 - 90 90 - 156 156 -
- $ - 6,653 $ 6,653 $ - 20 $ 20 $ - 113 $ 113
1,964 (70) 43)
(180) - (141)
857 - 1685
- - 2
_ - @
92 ~
] 2,733
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Revenues:
Use of money and property
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Public safety - police
Civil and criminal court system
Sheriff
Juvenile court
Superior court
State court
Solicitor state court
Total civil and criminal court system
Public works - roads and drainace
Total expenditures
Excess {deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures
Cther financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
sources over expenditures and otheruses
Fund balance, beginning of year
Fund balance, end of year

Explanation of differences between budget and GAAP:

DeKalb County, Georgia

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Yezr Ended December 31, 2003
Non-GAAP Budget Basis (in thousands of dollars)

71

Deficiency of revenues and other sources over expenditures

and other uses - budget basis
Differences - budget to GAAP:
Due to revenues:
Accrued receivables 12-31-2002
Accrued receivables 12-31-2003
Net change in fund balance - GAAP basis

(continued)
Speed Humps Fund Local Law Enforcemen: Block Grant #7 Fund Local Law Enforcement Block Grant #8 Fund
- Actual Variance with Actual Variance with Actual Varance with
Original and Amounts Final Budget Original Final Amounts Final Budget Original and Amounts Final Budget
Final Budgeted (Budgetary Over Budgeted Budgeted (Budgetary Over Final Budgeted (Budgetary Over
Amounts Basis) {Unde?} Amounts Amounts Basis) {Under) Amounts Basis) (Under)
$ - $ 1 $ 1 $ - $ 3 10 $ 7 $ - $ - $ -
- N - - - - N 453 453 -
100 175 75 - - - - - - -
$ 100 $ 176 $ 76 $ ~ $ 3 10 $ 7 $ 453 $ 453 $ -
- - - 319 323 310 (13) 118 - (118}
- - - 132 132 118 (14) 186 - (186}
- - - - - - - 40 - (40}
- - - 111 111 111 - 159 - (159}
- - - 75 83 - (83) - - -
- - - 69 76 2 (74) - - -
- - 387 402 231 (1714} 385 -
151 1 (150) - B N N N - K
151 1 {150) 706 725 541 {184) 503 - (118}
(51) 175 226 (706) (722) (531) 191 (50) 453 118
- - - 30 46 32 (14) 50 50 -
{51} 175 226 (676) (676) (499) 177 - 503 118
51 51 - 676 676 676 - - - -
$ - 226 $ 226 $ - - 177 $ 177 $ - 503 $ 118
175 (499) 503
@ - -
5 . -
$ 176 499 $ 503



DeKalb County, Georgia

Nonmajor Debt Service Funds

The following Nonmajor Debt Service Funds Funds are used by the County:

Building Authority Debt Service Fund - to account for rental and other revenues used to fund the principal and interest requirsments
on revenue bonds issued by the Building Authority.

2001 General Obligation Park Bonds Debt Service Fund - to account for taxes levied to fund the principal and interest requirements
on the 2001 general obligation park bonds.

Other General Obligation Bonds Debt Service Fund - to account for taxies levied to fund the principal and interest requirements on
all other general obligation bond issues of the County.
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DeKalb County, Georgia
Nonmajor Debt Service Funds
Combining Balance Sheet
December 31, 2003
(in thousands of dollars)

Building 2001 General Other General Totat Nonmajor
Authority Obligation Obligation Debt Service
Debt Service Park Bonds Bonds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 686 $ 605 N 9,921 $ 11,212
Taxes receivable (net) - 289 455 744

Total assets 686 894 10,376 11,956
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:

Deferred revenue - 171 285 456
Fund balance 686 723 10,091 11,500
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 686 $ 894 $ 10,376 $ 11,956

DeKalb County, Georgia
Nonmajor Debt Service Funds
Comtining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
For the Year Ended December 31, 2003
(inthousands of dollars)
Building 2001 General Other General Total Nonmajor
Authority Obligation Obligation Debt Service
Debt Service Park Bonds Bonds Funds
REVENUES
Taxes $ - $ 10,140 § 13,832 $ 23,972
Use of money and property 98 59 26 183
Miscellaneous - - 2,070 2,070

Total revenues 98 10,199 15,928 26,225
EXFENDITURES
Debt service 212 11,399 16,384 28,4¢5
Defiziency of revenues under expenditures (114) (1,700) (456) (2,270)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Proceeds of bond issuance - - 127,915 127,915
Premium on bond issuance - - 6,509 6,509
Payments to escrow agents - - (135,562) (135,562)
Bond issuance expense - - (868) (868)
Trarsfers in 800 - - 800

Total other financing sources (uses) 800 - (2,006) (1,206)
Net change in fund balance 686 (1,700) (2,462) (3,476)
Fund balance - beginning - 2,423 12,553 14,978
Fund balance - ending $ 686 $ 723 $ 10,091 $ 11,500
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CeKalb County, Georgia

Nonmajor Debt Service Funds

Schedule of Reverues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budgetand Actual

Revenue Bonds

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003
Non-GAAP Budget Basis (in thousands of doliars)

2001 General Obligation Park Bords

Other General Obligation Bonds

Acual Variance with Actual Variarce with Actual Variance with
Original and Amaunts Final Budget Original and Amounts Final 3udget Original Finat Amounts Final Budget
Final Budgeted (Budgetary Over Final Budgeted  (Budgetary Over Budgeted Budgeted {Budgetary Over
Amounts Basis) (Under) Amounts Basis) (Urder) Amounts Amounts Basis) (Under)
Revenues:
Property taxes $ - $ - $ - $ 11,966 $ 10172 $ 1,794) $ 16,134 $ 16,134 $ 13,944 $ (2,190)
Use of money and property - 98 98 55 37 (18) 30 30 31 1
Miscellaneous - - - - 24 24 - 963 2,070 2,070
Total revenues - 98 98 12,021 10,233 1,788) 16,164 17,127 16,045 (119)
Expenditures:
Debt service 800 212 (588) 14,291 11,898 2,393) 16,200 17,163 16,056 (144)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures (800) (114) 686 (2,270) (1,665) 605 (36) (36) (11) 25
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 800 800 - - - - - - - -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues znd other
sources over expenditures and other uses - 686 686 (2,270) (1,665) 605 (36) (36) (1) 26
Fund balance, beginning of year - - - 2,270 2270 - 36 36 36 -
Fund balance, end of year $ - 686 $ 686 $ - 605 $ 605 $ - $ - 25 $ 25
Explanation of differences between budget and GAAP:
Deficiency of revenues and cther sources over expenditures
and other uses - budget basis 686 {1,665) (11)
Differences - budget to GAAP:
Due to revenues:
Accrued recelvables 12-31-2002 - (303) 571)
Accrued receivables 12-31-2003 - 289 463
Deferred revenues 12-31-2002 - 150 276
Deferred revenues 12-31-2003 - {171) (285)
Due to expenditures:
Debt service payment due 12-31-2002 - - (12,222)
Debt service paymert due 12-31-2003 - - 9,888
Net change in fund balance - GAAP basis $ 686 $ (1,700) $ (2462)
(continued)
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DeKalb County, Georgia

Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities for the

County's governmental funds.

The following Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds are used by the County:

1987 Parks Bonds Fund - to account for the proceeds of the 1987 General Obligation Bond issue and the related capital expenditures for
parks.

Jail Bonds Fund - to account for the proceeds of the 1991 General Obligation Bond issues and the related capital expenditures for a new
County jail.

Health Facilities Bonds Fund - to account for the proceeds of the 1993 General Obligation Bond issue and the related capital expenditures

for health facilities.

COPS Bond Projects Fund - to account for the proceeds of the 2003 Certificate of Participation Bond issue and the related capital

expenditures.

COPS Morgue Project Fund - to account for the proceeds of the 1994 Certificate of Participation Bond issue ard the related capital

expenditures for the construction of a morgue / forensic science center.

HOST Capital Projects Fund - to account for the proceeds from the homestead sales tax revenues designated for capital projects.

Community Greenspace Program Fund - to account for monies donated for green space acquisitions within the County.

Capital Improvement Projects Fund - to account for all other monies related to capital expenditures of the County's govemmental funds.

Building Authority Juvenile Court Project Fund - to account for the proceeds of the 2003 Revenue Bonds and the related expenditures for the
construction of ajuvenile court facility for the County. g




DeKalb County, Georgia

Nonmajor Capttal Project Funds

Combining Balance Sheet

December 31, 2003

(in thousands of dollars)

Building
Health COoPS COPS HOST Community Capital Authority Total Nonmajor
1987 Parks Jail Facilities Bond Morgue Capital Greenspace Improvement Juvenile Capital Project
Bonds Bonds Bonds Projects Project Projects Program Projects Court Project Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 155 $ 2,211 $ 186 $ 12,680 $ 10 $ 28,48 $ 3,894 $ 27,145 $ 8,951 83,650
Due from other governments = - - - - - - 1,863 - 1,863
Total assets 165 2,211 186 12,680 10 28,4°8 3,894 29,008 8,951 ~ 85,513
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Accounts and contracts payable - - - - - 1,26 - 529 - 1,745
Deferred revenue - - - - - - - ik} - 11
Total liabilities - - - - - 1,26 - 540 - 1,756
Fund balance:
Reserved 30 1,721 36 - 7 2,399 - 4,759 4 8,956
Unreserved 125 490 150 12,680 3 24,803 3,894 23,709 8,947 74,801
Total fund balance 155 2,211 186 12,680 10 27,202 3,894 28,468 8,951 83,757
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 165 $ 2,211 $ 186 $ 12,680 $ 10 $ 28418 $ 3,894 $ 29,008 $ 8,951 85,513
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Revenues
Use of money and property
Intergovernmental
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures
Debt service

Cash defeasance of bonds
Capital outlay:
General government
Public safety
Civil and criminal court system
Public works
Parks and recreation
Health and welfare
Other
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds of bond issuance
Premium on bond issuance
Bond issuance expense
Contractual purchase obligations
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources {(uses)
Net change in fund balance
Fund balance - beginning
Fund balance - ending

DeKalb County, Georgia

Nonmajor Cavital Project Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

(in thousznds of doliars)

Building
) Health COPS COPS HOST Community Capital Authority Total Nonmajor
1987 Parks Jail Facilites Bond Morgue Capitd Greenspace Improvement Juvenile Capital Project
Bonds Bonds Bonds Projects Project Projects Program Projects Court 2roject Funds
$ 2 $ 26 $ 3 $ 48 $ . $ 425 $ 53 $ - $ 30 587
- - - - - (128) - 1,436 - 1,308
- - - - - - - 93 - 93
2 26 : 3 48 - 297 53 1,529 30 1,988
- - - - - 2,114 - - - 2,114
- - - 9,788 - - - . - 9,788
- - - - - 2,17 - 5,507 - 7,624
- - - - - - - 481 - 481
- (18) - 11,150 6 7,639 - 7 6,126 24,910
- - - - - 6,173 - 8,533 - 14,706
- - - - - - 1,878 51 - 1,929
- - 52 - - - - 1 - 53
- - - - - - - 32 - 32
- (18) 52 20,938 6 18,043 1,878 14,612 6,126 61,637
2 44 (49) 120,890) (6) (17,746) (1,825) (13,083) (6,096) (59,649)
- - - 25,000 - - - - 15,000 40,000
- - - 212 - - - - 232 444
- - - (363) - - - - (185) (548)
- - - - - - - 1,365 - 1,365
- - - - - 3,045 - 27,093 - 30,138
- . - - - (239) (75) (1,798) - (2,112)
- - - 24,849 - 2,806 (75) 26,660 15,047 69,287
2 44 '49) 3,959 (6) (14,940) (1,900) 13,577 8,951 9,638
153 2,167 235 8,721 16 42,142 5,794 14,891 - 74,119
$ 165 $ 2,211 $ 186 $ 12,680 $ 10 $ 27,202 $ 3,894 $ 28,468 $ 8,851 83,757
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DeKalb County, Georgia
Internal Service Funds

Internal Service Funds.are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by one department to other departments of the Countyon a
cost reimbursement basis.

The following Internal Service Funds are maintained by the County:

Vehicle Maintenance Fund - to account for operations of the County's Vehicle Maintenance Department which maintains and repairs all of the
County's vehicles.

Vehicle Replacement Fund - to account for all purchases and dispositions of the County's vehicles.

Risk Management Fund - to account for all of the County's risk management related revenues and expenditures. This includes unemployment
compensation insurance, group health and life insurance, general liability insurance, and worker's compensation insurance.
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ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Inventories and prepaid items
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets (net)

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Claims and judgments payable, current portion
Obligation under capital leases, current portion
Other accrued liabilities
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabiliies:

Claims and judgments payable, long term portion
Obligation under capital leases, long term portion

Compensated absences payable
Total long-term liabilities

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)
Invested in capitel assets
Unrestricted

Total net assets (deficit)

DeKalb County, Georgia

Internal Service Funds

Combining Statement of Net Assets

December 31, 2003
(In thousands of dollars)
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Vehicle Vehicle Risk
Maintenance Replacement Management Total
988 $ 36,864 $ 8,955 $ 46,807
914 - 563 1,477
1,902 36,864 9,518 48,284
2,248 50,507 - 52,755
4,150 87,371 9,518 101,039
15 - 853 868
- - 7172 7,172
- 2,176 - 2,176
195 - - 195
210 2176 8,025 10,411
- - 3,120 3,120
- 3536 - 3,536
663 - - 663
663 3,536 3,120 7,319
873 5712 11,145 17,730
2,248 44795 - 47,043
1,029 36,864 (1,627) 36,266
3,277 $ 81,659 $ (1,627) $ 83,309




DekKalb County, Georgia

Internal Service Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets

Operating Revenues:

- Charges for services
Intergovernmental
Miscellaneous

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses:
Salaries and employee benefits
Supplies
Operating services and charges
Maintenance and repairs
Depreciation
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income
Other Income (Expense):
Interest incomz
Interest expense
Change in net essets

Net assets (deficit) - beginning

Net assets (deficit) - ending

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

(In thousands of dollars)

Vehicle Vehicle Risk
Maintenance Replacement Management Totals

$ 20,230 $ 20,375 $ 57,090 $ 97,695
85 - - 85

260 1,531 - 1,791

20,575 21,906 57,090 99,571

7,418 - - 7,418

3,831 - - 3,831

1,146 10 55,368 56,524

7,475 - - 7,475

326 16,702 - 17,028

20,196 16,712 55,368 92,276

379 5,194 1,722 7,295

- 341 - 341
- (231) - (231)

379 5,304 1,722 7,405

2,398 76,355 (3,349) 75,904

$ 3,277 $ 81,659 $ (1,627) $ 83,309




DeKalb County, Georgia
Internal Service Funds
Combining Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31, 2003
(In thousands of dollars)
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Vehicle Veticle Risk
Maintenance Replacement Management Totals
Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received from cusiomers $ 20,575 $ 21,906 $ 57,090 $ 99,571

Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (12,507) (10) (52,933) (65,450)

Cash payments to employees for services (7,452) - - (7,452)
Net cash provided by operating activities 616 21,896 4,157 26,669
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:

Acaquisition and construction of capital assets (30) {14,258) - (14,288)

Payments on leases - (2,050) - (2,050)
Net cash required by capital and related financing activities (30) (16,308) - (16,338)
Cash flows from investing activities:

Interest on investments - 341 - 341
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 586 5,929 4,157 10,672
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 402 30,935 4,798 36,135
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 988 36,864 8,955 46,807
Recongciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided

by operating activities:

Operating income (loss) 379 5,194 1,722 7,295

Adjustments to reconcile operating income {loss) to net

cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 326 16,702 - 17,028
Change in assets and liabilities:

(Increase) decrease in inventories and prepaid expenses (52) - 73 21
Increase (dscrease) in payables (52) 2,362 2,310
Increase (dzcrease) in other liabilities 15 - - 15
Net cash provided by operating activities 616 21,896 4,157 26,669
Capital assets acquired through capital leases $ - $ 1,341 $ - $ 1,341




DeKalb County, Georgia

Agency Funds

Tax Commissioner - to account for all real, personal, intangible, and intangible recording taxes collected and forwarded to the County and other
governmental units.

Sheriff - to account for collection fees, proceeds from judicial sales, bond forfeitures, and cash bonds, which are disbursed to other elected officials and
agencies, the County, and individuals. The Sheriff also collects, maintains, and disburses monies for civit suits and minors per court order.

Seized Property - to account for monies seized by public safety during arrests. These monies are either returned to victims, the arrested party, or
forfeited to the County.

The following agency funds are used to account for fines, fees, and other monies collected by the courts and remitted to other parties in accordance with
court orders and state law:

Clerk of Superior Court Probate Court
Stats Court Magistrate Court
Juvenile Court State Court Probation
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TAX COMMISSIONER
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Taxes Receivable
Total Assets
LIABILITIES
Due to Others

SHERIFF
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
LIABILITIES
Due to Others

CLERK SUPERIOR COURT
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents

LIABILITIES
Due to Others

STATE COURT
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
LIABILITIES
Due to Others

JUVENILE COURT
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
LIABILITIES
Due to Others

DeKaib County, Georgia

Agency Funds

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities
Year Ended December 31, 2003

(In thousands of dollars)

Balance Balance

12/31/2002 Additions Deductions 12/31/2003
$ 13,986 $ 757,082 753,450 $ 17,618
23,627 611,322 608,273 2€,671

$ 37613 $ 1,368,404 1,361,728 $ 44289
$ 37,613 $ 2,241,219 2,234,543 $ 44,289
$ 7613 _$ 5,279 6,811 $ 6,081
$ 7,613 $ 5,279 6,811 $ 6,081
$ 1,601 $ 46,418 45,223 $ 2,796
$ 1,601 3$ 46,418 45,223 $ 2796
$ 1,221 $ 11,749 11,924 $ 1046
$ 1,221 $ 11,749 11,924 $ 1046
$ 16 $ 215 213 $ 18
$ 16 $ 215 213 $ 18

PROBATE COQURT
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Ecuivalents
LIABILITIES
Due to Others

MAGISTRATE COURT
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
LIABILITIES
Due to Others

STATE COURT PROBATION

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
LIABILITIES
Due to Others

SEIZED PROPERTY
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
LIABILITIES
Due to Others

TOTALS
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Taxes Receivable
Total Assets
LIABILITIES
Due fc Others

83
Balance Balance

12/31/2002 Additions Deductions 12/31/2003
265 $ 981 $ 927 $ 319
265 $ 981 $ 927 $ 319
33 $ 925 % 930 $ 28
33 $ 925 § 930 $ 28

1,953 $ 3,189 % 3,080 $ 2,062
1,953 $ 3,189 $ 3,080 $ 2,062
347 $ 198 $ 246 $ 299
347 3 198§ 246 $ 299
27,035 $ 826,036 $ 822,804 $ 30,267
23,627 611,322 608,278 26,671
50,662 $ 1,437,358 $ 1.431,082 $ 56,938
50,662 $ 2,310,173 $ 2,303,897 $ 56,938




DeKalb County, Georgia

Statistical Section (Unaudited)

Statistical tables differ from financial statements because they usually cover more than one fiscal year and may present non-accounting data. These
tables reflect social and economic data, financial trends, and the fiscal capacity of the government.
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DeKalb County, Georgia

Comments Relative to the Statistical Section

The following statistical tables that are recommended for inclusion by the Government Finance Officer's Association are not included for the reasons
stated below:

Special Assessment Collections - Last Ten Fiscal Years. (County has had no special assessments for the past ten years related to any debt for which
the County is obligated in some manner.)
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STATISTICAL SECTION




DeKalb County, Georgia
Gereral Goverrmental Revenues By Source and Expenditures By Function

Last Ten Years
(In thousands of dollars)

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994
Revenues By Source:

Taxes $ 353,904 $318,756 $296,665 $282,191 $265,959 $309,268 $264,053 $226,554 $216,116 $216,201
Licenses and Permits 26,833 27,625 29,385 27,686 28,254 22,163 21,257 20396 18,138 15,404
Intergovernmental 46,704 47,228 48,929 55,613 28,860 40,169 16,992 17400 15,618 15,678
Charges for Services 35,835 35,580 28,994 28,894 26,499 24,191 22,053 21,800 20,268 17,809
Fines and Forfeitures 29,311 24,162 21,571 20,171 19,277 19,155 19,474 17,835 16,247 14,534
Use of Money and Property 4,284 4,237 7,280 10,556 7,302 7,391 5,211 5,751 5,311 5,030
Miscellaneous 6,742 4,262 5,470 3,610 3,950 4,141 5,315 3,024 2,143 4,765

Total $ 503,613 $461,850 $438,294 $428,721 $380,101 $426,478 $354,355 $312,860 $293,841 $289,421

Expenditures By Function:

General Government $ 62,020 $ 55,369 $ 51,986 $ 49,551 $ 45,123 $ 41,290 $ 36,957 $ 38,031 $ 36,704 $ 34,429
Public Safety 143,940 136,441 128,107 118,265 114,840 103,288 93,282 88,625 89,741 85,435
Civil and Criminal Court System 109,274 101,229 97,039 91,326 £2,810 73,481 66,188 60,436 59,525 50,104
Planning 1,569 1,341 1,750 1,923 2,234 1,920 1,943 1,943 2,141 2,137
Public Works 43,605 41,107 38,346 42,459 30,063 42,757 26,075 24,430 24,984 23,162
Community Development 9,443 8,094 8,642 7,361 8,183 5,839 6,225 6,027 6,348 5,304
Parks and Recreation 17,697 19,578 18,245 16,562 15,722 14,935 14,166 13,247 13,819 13,774
Library 10,828 10,071 10,171 8,525 7,377 6,963 6,663 6,106 6,016 5,788
Health and Welfare 33,960 33,526 26,596 25,787 25,716 25,830 19,032 23,570 24,628 29,268
Miscellaneous 11,738 10,294 9,636 7,569 10,618 7,664 7,049 8,730 11,329 8,644
Capital Outlays 71,934 46,650 42,148 16,473 28,544 30,270 14,709 9,239 9,167 34,748
Debt Service 35,362 34,112 27,201 26,201 21,418 19,628 19,838 20,188 19,658 17,111

Total $ 551,370 $497,812 $459,867 $412,002 $392,648 $373,865 $312,127 $300,672 $ 304,060 $309,904

General governmental revenues and expenditures include all revenues and expenditures of governmental fund types. Transfers to or from other funds are not included.




Water and Sewerage System Fund:

Operating revenues
Operating expenses

Operating income

Sanitation Fund:
Operating revenues
Operating expenses

Operating income

DeKalb-Peachtree Airport Fund:
Operating revenues
Operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Stormwater Utility Fund:
Operating revenues
Operating expenses

Operating income (loss}

DeKalb County, Georgia

Operating Revenues, Expenses, and income of Enterprise Funds

Last Ten Years

(In thousands of dollars)

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994
$ 120398  $109,013  $109,928  $111,054  $103,633  § 86,882 § 83,634 $ 82049 $ 80,395 § 78,662
93,181 80,195 84,480 78,306 71,600 65,224 62,838 61,805 57,982 56,934
$ 27217  $ 28818  § 25448  § 32,748  $ 32,033  § 21,658 $ 20,796  $ 20244  $ 22413 § 21,728
$ 52506 $ 54,934 $ 46,374 $ 41,545  § 41,277  § 38202 $ 37,97 $ 34179  $ 31,631 $ 31,170
46,397 46,718 40,125 38,268 40,584 33,525 31,865 33,508 30,736 27,213
$ 6109 $ 8216 $ 6249 $ 3277 $ 693 § 4677 $ 6106 $ 671 $ 895 § 3,957
$ 2,766 $ 2,808 $ 2625 $ 2,509 $ 2,855 $ 2,160 $ 2,096 $ 1950 $ 1,986 $ 1,879
2,771 2,583 2,429 2,250 2,150 2,059 1,863 2,174 1,797 1,790
$ (5) $ 225 $ 196 $ 259 $ 705 $ 101 $ 233 $ (224) $ 189 $ 89
$ -
597
$ (597)
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Property Tax Rates Per $1,000
Real and Personal Property:
County:
General
Special tax district-
designated services:

Avondale
Chamblee
Clarkston
Decatur
Doraville
Lithonia
Pine Lake
Stone Mountain
Unincorporated

Hospital services

Fire protection

Bond retirement and interest
Total County *

Property Tax Levies (In thousands
of dollars)
Real and Personal Property:
County:
General
Special tax district-
designated services
Hospital services
Fire protection
Bond retirement and interest
Total County

DsKalb County, Georgia

Property Tax Rates and Leviss

Last Ten Years

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1906 1995 1994
8.73 8.03 5.65 9.01 6.36 6.46 8.44 8.19 7.14 7.51
276 3.49 4.29 3.72 4.03 2.37 2.38 2.34 3.97 5.75
1.12 1.42 1.74 1.51 1.64 0.96 0.97 0.95 1.30 1.70
2.33 2.94 3.62 3.14 3.40 2.00 2.01 1.98 3.25 4.64
1.47 1.85 2.28 1.98 2.14 1.26 1.26 1.24 1.81 243
1.56 1.96 2.41 2.09 227 1.33 1.34 1.32 1.88 2.51
242 3.05 3.75 3.26 3.53 2.07 2.08 2.05 3.32 4.72
2.76 3.49 4.29 3.72 4.03 237 2.38 2.34 3.97 5.75
2.07 262 3.21 2.79 3.02 1.78 1.78 1.76 2.74 3.83
2.76 2.94 4.20 1.96 3.93 3.05 2.60 2.71 3.27 3.26
0.92 1.05 1.30 1.30 1.09 1.79 1.25 1.80 1.95 2.31
1.99 2.31 243 1.44 273 2.54 2.60 2.60 2.84 2.38
1.18 1.25 1.45 0.97 1.07 1.09 1.29 1.33 1.43 1.17
15.58 15.58 15.03 14.68 15.18 14.93 16.18 16.63 16.63 16.63
* The total County millage rate shown above is for the unincorporated sortion of the County which comprises over 86% of the total County.
$ 102,320 $ 74,393 $ 44,444 $ 65,870 $ 43,828 § 72,239 $ 86,574 $ 79,374 $ 66,270 $ 67,753
29,291 25,130 30,288 13,943 25,124 31,182 24,660 24,229 28,287 28,056
10,730 9,728 10,226 9,504 7,511 20,017 12,822 17,445 18,099 20,840
21,469 19,963 17,961 9,940 17,906 26,620 25,088 23,733 24,785 20,895
20,806 21,035 22,508 14,319 14,242 13,492 14,732 14,430 14,895 11,851
$ 184,616 $150,249 $125,427 $113,576 $108,611 $163,550 $163,886 $159,211 $152,336 $149,395
(continued)
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DeKalb County, Georgia

Property Tex Rates and Levies (continued)

Last Ten Years
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994
Property Tax Levies (continued)
(In thousands of doliars)
Public Utilities:
County:
General $ 4,168 $ 2,389 $ 2492 $ 3,746 $ 2,775 $ 2,507 $ 3,318 $ 3,294 $ 2,900 $ 3,081
Special tax district-
designated services 1,106 1,085 1,543 751 1,534 1,030 902 942 1,169 1,208
Hospital services 439 443 573 540 475 695 491 724 792 948
Fire protection 812 857 910 520 1,087 897 927 930 1,025 877
Bond retirement and interest 503 475 575 403 467 423 507 535 581 480
Total County $ 7,028 $ 5249 $ 6,093 $ 5,960 $ 5,338 § 5,552 $ 6,145 $ 6425 $ 6,467 $ 6,594
Motor Vehicle and Mobie Homes:
County:
General $ 11,999 $ 9,114 $ 14,243 $ 10,181 $ 8,753 § 10,529 $ 11,395 $ 8,661 $ 8,021 $ 7,012
Special tax distric:
designated services 4,280 6,040 3,294 5,769 3,861 3,148 3,500 3,742 3,352 2,868
Hospital services 1,760 2,025 2,087 1,785 2,425 1,651 2,468 2,365 2,468 2,187
Fire protection 3,617 3,524 2,319 4,042 3,256 3,119 3,397 3,261 2,412 3,295
Bond retirement and interest 1,987 2,145 1,486 1,697 1,477 1,621 1,837 1,735 1,250 1,270
Total County $ 23,643 $ 22,848 $ 23,429 $ 23474 $ 19,772 $ 20,068 $ 22,597 $ 19,764 $ 17,503 $ 16,632
Intangible Property:
County:
General $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 645 $ 587
Special tax district-
designated services - - - - - - - - . 270 262
Hospital services - - - - - - - - - 198 200
Fire protection - - - - - - - - 190 230
Fire tax refunds - - - - - - - - - 75
Bond retirement and interest - - - - - - - - 100 116
Total County $ - % - $ - 8 - $ - 8 - 8 - 8 - $ 1403 $ 1470

Total County Property Tax Levies $ 215,287 $178,346 $154,949 $143,010 $134,721 $189,170 $192,628 $185,400 $177,709 $174,091




Total Tax Levy

Collection of Current Years'

Taxes During Year

Percentage of Levy Collected
During Year

Collection of Prior Years'

Taxes During Year

Toftal Collections

Percentage of Total Collections

to Tax Levy

Accumulated Delinquent Tzxes

Percentage of Accumulated
Delinquent Taxes to Current

Years' Tax Levy

DeKalb County, Georgia

Property Tax Levies and Collections
{County Portion Only)

Last Ten Years

(In thousands of dollars)

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1 998 1997 1995 1995 1994

_$ 215287 $178,346 $154,949 $143,010 $134,721 $189,170 $ 192,628 $185,400 $177,708 $174,091

$ 203,674 $172,814 $154,249 $135,206 $131,593 $185,728 $187,964 $181,337 $172,107 $169,879
94.61% 96.90% 99.55% 94.54% 97.68% 98.18% 97.58% 97.81% 96.85% 97.58%

$ 7,676 $ 6,729 $ 6512 $ 65483 $ 6,223 $ 4537 $ 4187 $ 7,235 $ 4613 $ 10,658

$ 211,350 $179,543 $160,761 $ 140,689 $137,816 $190,265 $192,151 $188,572 $176,720 $180,537
98.17% 100.67% 103.75% 98.38% 102.30% 100.58% 99.75% 101.71% 99.44% 103.70%

$ 10,134 $ 7404 $ 8,085 $ 9,717 $ €316 $ 5878 § 6,137 $ 5,788 $ 8,460 $ 6,902
4.71% 4.15% 5.22% 6.79% 4.69% 3.11% 3.19% 3.12% 4.76% - A3.96%
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DeKalb County, Georgia

Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property

Last Ten Years

{In millions of dollars)

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994
General Purposes and Bend Retirement:
Real property:
Assessed value $ 17,636 $ 16,545 $ 15,135 $ 13,565 $ 12,033 $ 11,118 $ 10,168 $ 9674 $ 9,284 $ 9,069
Estimated market value 44,090 41,363 37,838 33,913 30,083 27,795 25,420 24185 23,210 22,673
Personal property:
Assessed value 1,763 1,850 1,916 1,806 1,825 1,881 1,771 1,655 1,614 1,561
Estimated market value 4,408 4,625 4,790 4,515 4,563 4,703 4,428 4,138 V 4,035 3,903
Motor vehicle and mobile homes:
Assessed value 1,513 1,508 1,489 1,750 1,355 723 1,318 1213 1,068 1,015
Estimated market value 3,783 3,773 3,723 4,375 3,388 1,808 3,295 3,033 2,670 2,538
Privately owned public utilities:
Assessed value 424 441 416 419 436 388 393 411 412 413
Estimated market value 1,060 1,103 1,040 1,048 1,090 970 983 1,028 1,030 1,033
Total value for bond refirement
(gross):
Assessed value $ 21,506 $ 20,345 $ 18,956 $ 17,540 $ 15,649 $ 14,110 $ 13,650 $ 12,953 $ 12,378 $ 12,058
Estimated market value $ 53,341 $ 50,864 $ 47,391 $ 43,851 $ 39,124 $ 35,276 $ 34,126 $ 32,384 $ 30,945 $ 30,147
Ratio of Total Assessed Value to
Total Estimated Markel Value 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4
Homestead Exemption $ 1,499 $ 1,452 $ 1,407 $ 1,353 $ 1,313 $ 1,336 $ 1,309 $ 1310 $ 1,293 $ 1,271
Freeport Exemption $ 265 $ 258 $ 281 $ 292 $ 204 $ 365 $ 327 $ 326 $ 335 $ 306
Net Assessed Value for Gzneral
Purposes $ 195572 $ 18,634 $ 17,268 $ 15,895 $ 14,042 $ 12,409 $ 12,014 $ 11,317 $ 10,750 $ 10,481
Net Assessed Value for Fire Purposes § 17,876 $ 17,062 $ 16,122 $ 14,707 $ 13,115 S 11,626 $ 11,198 $ 10,540 $ 10,097 $ 10,057

Note: Assessments are made as of Jenuary 1 of each year.
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DeKalb County, Georgia
Total Property Tax Rates - All Direct and Overlapping Govemments

Per $1,000 Assessed Value

Last Ten Years
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1995 1995 1994
DeKalb County 38.81 37.81 37.26 37.16 37.91 37.66 40.16 41.51 41.51 41.51
Atlanta 43.60 43.99 38.95 46.22 45.05 46.66 48.42 50.09 46.42 49.69
Decatur 43.44 43.77 40.35 42.26 44.41 45.95 48.09 54,31 54.08 53.52
Avondale 48.06 48.29 47.25 49.42 49.51 48.48 51.44 5264 53.71 55.50
Chamblee 42.82 39.77 38.21 40.72 40.62 40.57 43.53 4475 44.54 44.95
Clarkston 42.38 . 42.20 41.24 43.94 43.38 42.61 45.57 4678 47.49 48.89
Lithonia 50.30 48.87 48.21 50.46 49.51 48.68 51.64 52.85 ~ 53.56 54.97
Doraville 46.81 42.80 41.37 43.79 42.25 41.94 44.90 4612 46.12 46.76
Pine Lake 52.89 52.83 54.75 59.92 47.01 46.98 50.94 53.14 55.21 57.00
Stone Mountain 47.81 46.96 43.67 45.99 45.00 44.39 47.34 48.56 48.98 50.08

Note: Total property tax rates include the taxes for general County government, schools, the State, and any additional taxes levied by the respective cities. All of the above are assessed at 40
of fair market value except Decatur and Doraville at 50%. No street lights are included in the above rates.
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Population (in thousandé)*
Assessed Value (in milliors of dollars)

Gross Bonded Debt (in thousands
of dollars)

Less Reserve for General Bond Debt
Service (in thousands of dollars)

Net Bonded Debt (in thousands
of dollars)

Ratio of Net Bonded Debtto
Assessed Value

Net Bonded Debt Per Capita

DeKalb County, Georgia

Ratio of Net General Bonded Debt to

Assessed Valuz and Net Bonded Debt Per Capita

93

*Source: DeKalb County Planning Department

General Governmental Expenditures*

Debt Service Expenditures for
General Bonded Debt

Ratio (%) of Debt Service
Expenditures to General
Governmental ExpenditLres

Last Ten Years
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994
691 686 675 666 610 599 594 590 585 577
$ 21,506 $ 20,345 $ 18,956 $ 17,540 $ 15,649 $ 14,110 $ 13,650 $ 12,953 $ 12,378 $ 12,058
$ 250,345 $267,640 $282,275 $168,335 $175,920 $183,360 $188,620 $195,510 $202,075 $207,960
10,814 14,976 17,610 12,979 12,618 12,861 13,148 12,770 12,852 12,216
$ 239,631 $252,664 $264,665 $155,356 $163,302 §170,499 $175,472 $182,740 $189,223 $195,744
0.0111 0.0124 0.0140 0.0089 0.0104 0.0121 0.0129 0.0141 0.0153 0.0162
$ 346.64 $ 368.31 $ 392.10 $ 233.27 $ 267.71 § 284.64 $ 295.41 $ 309.73 $ 323.46 $ 339.24
DeKalb County, Georgia
Ratio of Annual Debt Service For General Bonded Debt
To Total General Expenditures
Last Ten Years
(Inthousands of dollars)
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 199% 1995 1994
$ 551,370 $497,812 $459,867 $412,002 $392,648 $373,865 $312,127 $300,672 $304,060 $309,904
$ 30,501 $ 28,318 $ 20,866 $ 17,029 $ 17,177 § 17,306 $ 17,454 $ 17,443 $ 17,119 $ 15,557
5.53% 5.69% 4.54% 4.13% 4.37% 4.63% 5.59% 5.80% 5.63% 5.02%

* Includes all expenditures by governmental fund types. Transfers to other funds are not included.




DeKalb County, Georgia

Computation of Legal Debt Margin

December 31, 2003
(In thousands of dollars)

Assessed Value
Debt Limit - 10% of assessed value

Amount of Debt Applicable to Debt Limit:
Total bonded debt

Less:
Genzral obligation bonds fund balance $ 10,814
Governmental activities revenue bonds 15,000
Water and sewerage system revenus bonds 505,365

$§ 770,710

531,179

Total debt applicable to debt limit
Legal Debt Margin

NOTE: The constitutional debi limit for general obligation tax bonds which
is 10% of the assessed valuation of taxable property within the County.

DekKalb County, Georgia

$21,506,000

2,150,600

239,531
_$ 1,911,069

may be issued by the Commissioners of DeKalb County

Computation of Direct and Overlapping Debt

December 31, 2003
(In thousands of dollars)

Gross Debt Percentage DeKalb
Less Debt Debt County's
Retirement Applicable to Share
Funds DeKalb County of Debt
DeKalb County $ 239,531 100.00% $ 239,531
Overlapping Debt:
City of Atlanta (A) 212,874 2.60% 5,535
Fulton-DeKalb Hospital Authority (B) 258,400 29.34% 75,815
Total Overlapping Debt 471,274 81,350
Total Direct and Overlapping Debt $ 710,805 320,88
Total Direct and Overlapping Dzbt Per Capita $ 46417

(A) Debt overlaps only property in the County which lies within city limits of Atlantz.
(B) Debtoverlaps Countywide. These bonds are a closed lien on a limited tax contracted to be levied by Fulton and DeKalb

Counties. The Authority has no power to levy taxes.
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DeKalb County, Georgia

Water and Sewerage System

Schedule of Revenue Bond Coverage '

Last Ten Years

(In thousands of dollars)

95

2003 2002 2001 2000 1899 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994
Net Operating Revenue as Defined
in Bond Resolution* $ 44,630 $ 50,350 $ 46,753 $ 52,878 $ 49,313 $ 40,511 $ 38,430 $ 38,397 $ 38,955 $ 36,415
Highest Annual Debt Service :
Requirement $ 33465 $ 29,995 $ 29,995 $ 29,995 $ 15215 $ 13,304 $ 13,304 $ 13,618 $ 13,618 $ 13,618
Ratio 1.33 1.68 1.56 1.76 3.24 3.05 2.89 282 2.86 2.67

* Net Operating Revenue = Collected revenues (cash basis revenuss including interest earned on operating funds, renewal and extension funds, and fully reserved sinking funds), less
accrued expenses, plus depreciation and amortization.

DeKalb County, Georgia

Property Value, Construction Activity, and Bank Deposits

Property Value (In millions of doflars) $ 53,341

Construction Permits 8,785

Construction Value (In millions of dollars’ $ 1,312

Bank Deposits (In millions of doliars) $ 8,553

Last Ten Years
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994
$ 50,864 $ 47,391 $ 43,851 $ 39,124 $ 35,276 $ 34,126 $ 32,334 $ 30,945 $ 30,147
9,283 10,051 9,530 9,331 9,363 7,159 6,351 5,546 5,551
$ 1,831 $ 2,601 $ 1,644 $ 1436 $ 984 $ 825 $ 690 $ 509 $ 562
$ 7916 $ 7876 $ 11,107 $ 8392 $ 8186 $ 8390 $ 6,590 $ 6,365 $ 6272

Source: DeKalb County Development Department and Federal Reserve Bank

* Bank deposits are for fiscal years ending June 30 of the respective years,




DekKalb County, Georgia
Salaries and Bonds of Principal Cfficials
Year Ended December 31, 2003 ]
STATUTORY STATUTORY

BOND SALARY
Chief Executive Officer - Vernon Jones $ 50,000 $ 97,089
Board of Commisgioners - Elaine C. Boyer; Burrell Ellis; Henry C. "Hank" Johnson, Jr.; Larry Johnson; Lou Waliker;

Gale A. Walldorff; Judy A. Yates 10,000 21,324
Clerk of Superior Court - Linda Carter 25,000 107,169
Probate Court Judge - William M. Guess, Jr. - 100,000 121,458
Sheriff - Thomas E. Brown, Jr. 25,000 108,026
Tax Commissioner - Thomas R. Scott 100,000 110,888
The following officials and all other County employees are covered by a blanket $200,000 bond, as required:

State Court Judges - Alvin T. Wong; Mathew Rabins; Jack M. McLaughlin; Jose A. DelCampo; Wayne M. Purdom; Edward E. Carriere 128,602

Solicitor State Court - Gwendolyn R. Keyes 128,602

District Attorney- J. Tom Morgan 133,603

Superior Court Judges - Hilton M. Fuller, Jr.; Clarence F. Seeliger; Daniel M. Coursey, Jr.; Michael E. Hancock; Gail C. Flake;

Robert J. Casteliani; Linda W. Hunter; Robert P. Mallis; Anne Workman; Cynthia J. Becker 142,891

Juvenile Court Judges - Gregory A. Adams; Robin S. Nash . 128,602

Magistrate Court Judges - Charles D. Wood; Winston P. Bethe!; R. Hopkins Kidd 96,452-107,169

DeKalb County, Georgia
Principal Taxpayers For 2003

Ratio of Assessed

Total Assessed Valuation to Total
Type of Valuation Valuation County Assessed Tax Paid
Business (In thousands) (In thousands) Valuation (In thousands)
Bell South Utility $ 678,768 $ 250,737 1.17% $ 8,731
EOP - Perimeter Center LLC Investment 382,767 163,107 ) 0.71% 5,889
Georgia Power Company Utility 292,587 108,082 0.50% 4,029
General Motors Corporation Industrial 224,691 83,025 0.39% 3,077
Perimeter Mali inc Retail 268,587 107,435 0.50% 2,927
Post Apartment Homes LP Developer 164,605 65,842 0.31% 2,394
Hewlett Packard Co Retail 131,224 52,614 0.24% 2,091
Koger Ravinia LLC Developer 117,500 47,000 0.22% 1,918
Stone Mountain Industrial Park Developer 111,419 44,568 0.21% 1,660
Highwoods/Forsyth LTD Developer 111,627 44,651 0.21% 1,572
Total $ 2,483,775 $ 957,061 4.45% $ 34,288

Total County $53,341,000 $21,506,000




DeKalb County, Georgia
Insurance In Force

December 31, 2003

Coverage
Buildings, Contents, Records, Equipment:

Fire, lightning, extended coverage, vandalism, and malicious mischief (blanket coverage \ replacement cost $250,000 deductible) per occurrence -

All risk marine floater (specified property, equipment, and records)
Boiler and machinery - each occurrence (specified location and equipment exclusions) $2,500 deductible
Aircraft:
Rotocraft Liability (per occurence) - Hull coverage (deductible-5% of insured value)
Owner, Landlords, & Tenants - DeKalb-Peachtree Airport
Money and Securities (destruction, disappearance, wrongful abstraction)
Employee Faithful Performance Blanket Position Bond
Excess Workers' Compensation - per loss (self-insured retentions $500,000)
Group Life - 2.25 times annual salary
Group Hospital and Surgery - employee and dependents:
Major medical (70%-80% of expenses after $200 deductible up to $1,500 out of pocket then 100%). Optional HMO's available

DeKalb County, Georgia

Demographic Statistics
School Enroliment (Source: DeKalb County School Board)
Unemployment Rate (Source: State Department of Labor)
Effective Buying Income for 2003 (Source: DeKalb County Planning Department)

Population (Source: DeKalb County Planning Department):

97

Limits

Scheduled Property
Scheduled Property
$ 25,000,000

$ 5,000,000
$ 5,000,000
$ 200,000
$ 100,000
$10,000,000

Schedule

Unlimited

95,680
4.50%

$ 42,622

Major Employers (Source: DeKalb County Planning Department):

1900 21,112 Emory University and Hospital
1910 27,881 DeKalb County Board of Education
1920 44,051 DeKalb County Government
1930 70,378 General Motors

1940 86,942 Internal Revenue Service

1950 136,395 Cox Enterprises

1960 256,782 Emory Hospital & Clinic

1970 415,387 DeKalb Medical Center

1980 483,024 Children's Health Care of Atlanta
1990 545,837 Veteran's Administration Hospital
2000 665,865

2003 691,300

10,300
10,000
7,903
4,800
4,500
4,000
2,800
2,300
2,100
2,000




DeKalb County was created by Legisiative Act in 1823.

Form of Government: A Chief Executive Officer ard a Board of

Commissioners consisting of seven members
Area in square miles

Miles of paved roads
Miles of unpaved roads

Business licenses issued

Building permits:
Issued during year
Number of inspections made

Fire protection:
Number of stations
Number of training academizss
Number of emplayee positions
Number of fire cells
Number of fire hydrants (including private hydrants)

Emergency medical service:
Number of employee positions
Number of calls

Police protection:
Number of police officers
Number of arrests

Recreation (County owned faciities):
Number of parks
Total acreage of parks
Number of swimming pools
Number of athletic fields
Number of recreztion centers
Number of tennis centers
Number of tennis courts
Number of picnic shelters

Number of goif courses

DeKalb County, Georgia

269

2,668
2

20,£08

8,785
158,478

25

1

€42
19,321
22,608

48,272

1,012
48,914

120

58617.

12
162

109
87

Miscellaneous Statistical Information

Number of streetlights
Number of registered voters

County Water Plant:
Daily average consumption - gallons
Plant capacily - gallons/day
Treated water storage capacity - gailons
Raw water siorage capacity - gallons
Water supply source
Mies of water mains
Mies of water mains constructed during year
Number of customers
Number of water meters

County sewer system:
Number of advanced treatment disposal plants
Number of pumping stations
Mies of sewers
Mies of sewers constructed during year
Sewer treatment capacity - gallons/day
Average daily sewer treatment - gallons/day

County sanitation:
Number of employee positions
Number of residential customers
Number of commercial customers
Number of weekly pickups

County airport:
Number of employee positions
Number of flights (take-offs and landings) during year
Number of planes based

Number of County employees:
Full-time postions
Part-time / temporary positions
Total number of positions

38,355

364,394

66,511,000

128,000,000

71,500,000

324,000,000
Chattahoochee River

2,765

42

286,556

181,682

2

53

2,152

26
56,000,000
39,323,000

684
148,999
12,287
2

28
224,187
608

7,223
680

7,903
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